
	

Enhancing the lives of Western Australians 

    Public Trustee Annual Report 2012/13 



 

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
For the year ended 30 June 2013 
 
 
HON. MICHAEL MISCHIN LLB (HONS) BJURIS (HONS) MLC 
ATTORNEY GENERAL: MINISTER FOR COMMERCE 
 
In accordance with section 63 of the Financial Management Act 
2006, I hereby submit for your information and presentation to 
Parliament, the Annual Report of the Public Trustee for the financial 
year ended 30 June 2013. 
 
The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the 
provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006. 
 
 

 

Brian Roche BBus MMgt 
Public Trustee 
 
16 September 2013 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
Street Address 
Public Trustee Building 553 Hay Street Perth 
 
Postal Address 
GPO Box M946 PERTH WA 6843 
 
Telephone 
Wills, Deceased Estates & EPA - 1300 746 116 
Administration & Represented Persons - 1300 746 212 
 
Facsimile: (08) 9222 6617 
 
Website: www.publictrustee.wa.gov.au 
 
Email: public.trustee@justice.wa.gov.au 
 
ISSN   -   2202-6231 (Print) 
ISSN   -   2202-624X (Online)

previous              contents                  next                                                                                                                                             Public Trustee Annual Report 2012/13            2 

http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_333_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_333_homepage.html
http://www.publictrustee.wa.gov.au/
mailto:public.trustee@justice.wa.gov.au


 

Table of Contents 
 
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE..................................................... 2 
Table of Contents............................................................................. 3 
OVERVIEW...................................................................................... 4 

Foreword ...................................................................................... 4 
Our Operational Structure ............................................................ 5 

Enabling Legislation.................................................................. 6 
Responsible Minister ................................................................ 6 

Our Organisational Structure........................................................ 7 
Vision, Role, Values.................................................................. 7 
Organisational Chart ................................................................. 8 
Corporate Executive Committee profiles .................................. 9 
Administered Legislation........................................................... 9 
Other key legislation impacting on our activities..................... 10 

Performance Management Framework...................................... 11 
Outcome Based Management Framework ............................. 11 
Changes to Outcome Based Management Framework.......... 12 
Shared Responsibilities with Other Agencies ......................... 12 

OUR PERFORMANCE .................................................................. 13 
Actual Results versus Budget Targets ....................................... 13 
Summary of Key Performance Indicators................................... 13 
Report on Operations ................................................................. 14 

Trustee Services..................................................................... 14 
Legal Services ........................................................................ 15 
Business Development & Marketing....................................... 16 
Business Services .................................................................. 17 
Corporate Support .................................................................. 18 
Achievements ......................................................................... 19 

Looking Ahead in 2013/14.......................................................... 19 
Significant Issues ....................................................................... 20 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
OUR PEOPLE................................................................................22 

Staff Development ..................................................................22 
Public Sector Management Act 1994 S31(1) Compliance......23 
Compliance with Public Sector Code of Ethics .......................23 
Compliance with Public Sector Code of Conduct ...................23 
Recruitment, Selection & Appointment Standard....................24 
Occupational, Safety, Health and Injury Management............24 
Disability Access and Inclusion Plan Outcomes .....................25 

DISCLOSURES & LEGAL COMPLIANCE.....................................26 
Ministerial Directions ..................................................................26 
Other Governance Disclosures ..................................................26 

Contracts with Senior Officers ................................................26 
Other Financial Disclosures........................................................26 

Pricing policies of services......................................................26 
Capital Projects.......................................................................26 
Summary of Annual Agreement 2012/13................................26 
Governance committees .........................................................28 
Substantive Equality ...............................................................29 
Freedom of Information Requests ..........................................29 
Customer Feedback................................................................29 
Recordkeeping........................................................................29 

Other Legal Requirements .........................................................30 
Advertising ..............................................................................30 

Auditor’s Opinion ........................................................................30 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...........................................................32 

Certification of Financial Statements ..........................................32 
Statement of Comprehensive Income ........................................33 
Statement of Financial Position ..................................................34 
Statement of Changes in Equity .................................................34 
Statement of Cash Flows ...........................................................35 
Index of Notes to the Financial Statements................................36 

Notes to the Financial Statements for FYE 30 June 2013 ......37 
Estimates 2014 - Statement of Comprehensive Income ............72 
Estimates 2014 - Statement of Financial Position ......................73 

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR INFORMATION ............................74 
Certification of Performance Indicators ......................................74 

previous              contents                  next                                                                                                                                             Public Trustee Annual Report 2012/13            3 



  

OVERVIEW 

Foreword 
The Public Trustee provides trustee and 
asset management services to the Western 
Australian community including financial 
administration, trust management, deceased 
estate administration and preparation of 
Wills. 

The Public Trustee’s profile, reputation, 
client base and funds under management 
continue to grow. The Public Trustee 
manages more than 7,000 clients with gross 
assets valued at $1.8 billion. 

The Public Trustee’s strategic goal for 
financial sustainability is to achieve a self-
funding position consistent with other 
Australian Public Trustees, where agency 
revenue covers expenditure. 

In these challenging economic times, the 
Public Trustee achieved self-funding for the 
second consecutive year. 

A position of financial strength is critical for 
the Public Trustee to continue to meet its 
community obligation of providing services at 
subsidised or no cost to its many vulnerable 
clients. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Australia’s ageing population, increased 
prevalence of dementia, mental illness, and 
substance abuse, growth in multicultural and 
refugee communities, changing family 
structures families and breakdown of family 
relationships continue as the major drivers 
behind an increasing demand for trust and 
estate services. 

During the year, the Auditor General 
selected the Public Trustee for a 
Performance Audit to assess whether the 
Public Trustee appropriately manages its 
responsibilities in the administration of its 
client trust accounts. The report will be 
tabled in Parliament in September 2013. 

The Public Trustee’s Wills business 
continued to build on enhancements 
implemented during the previous year. There 
have been significant improvements in the 
nature and quality of Wills, and improved 
timeliness of appointments and completion 
of Wills. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
The Public Trustee continues to proactively 
engage with clients and stakeholders, and 
undertakes needs research, and community 
education. Our WA Wills Week, Seniors 
Week, Carers Week and Law Week 
activities were highly successful and well 
attended. 

In the coming year, the Public Trustee will 
launch its Community Foundation, which will 
provide people with a vehicle to create their 
own tax effective charitable funds to make a 
real difference to the lives of others. 

I would like to take the opportunity to thank 
our management and staff. They do a 
wonderful job of managing the financial and 
legal affairs of some of the most vulnerable 
members of our community. I would also like 
to thank the Director General Cheryl 
Gwilliam of the Department of the Attorney 
General for her strong leadership and 
support during the year. 
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 Overview 

Our Operational Structure 
We deliver services through five directorates 
and seventeen business units. 
 
Directorate: Trustee Services 
Trust Management 
Trust managers act as trustee, manager, 
donee, substitute trustee, or administrator for 
people who are unable or unwilling to 
manage their own financial affairs. 
Administering trusts may include setting up 
investment portfolios, collecting income, 
determining budgets and attending to the 
client’s accommodation and transport needs. 

Deceased Estates Administration 
Estate Managers administer estates where 
the Public Trustee is appointed executor as 
well as estates where executors have died 
or do not wish to administer the estate due 
to inability or conflict between beneficiaries. 
The Public Trustee also administers assets 
confiscated by the Director of Public 
Prosecutions and some estates where a 
person has died intestate (without a Will). 
Estate managers also manage testamentary 
trusts and assist beneficiaries of estates 
where there are limited assets to administer 
the estate themselves and executors 
through the Executor Assist service. 

 
 
 

Private Administrator Support 
Staff assist external administrators to 
understand their role and responsibilities 
including providing technical advice 
regarding the preparation of the annual 
accounts, and examines annual accounts 
submitted by these administrators. 

Directorate: Legal Services 
Legal 
Lawyers and paralegals provide in-house 
legal assistance such as probate, property, 
commercial, debt recovery, personal injuries 
and family law so the Public Trustee can 
perform its duties as trustee, administrator, 
attorney and executor.  

Legal officers often conduct their own 
litigation, appearing in the Supreme, District 
and Magistrates Courts, and the State 
Administrative Tribunal. Where appropriate, 
legal work is also outsourced to private 
practitioners. 

Wills 
Lawyers and paralegals provide professional 
Will drafting and safe custody services to 
Western Australians who appoint either the 
Public Trustee or another person as 
Executor of their Will. Will drafting services 
are offered at the Perth city office, and by a 
telephone appointment service to remote 
regions, and a ‘Wills on Wheels’ service to 
clients confined to their homes due to age or 
infirmity. 

 

Directorate: Business Development & 
Marketing 
Client Service Centre 
Client Service Officers are the ‘public face’ of 
the Public Trustee and provide reception, 
switchboard, contact centre and Wills 
administration services. 

Marketing & Communications 
This area is responsible for research, public 
education, proactive communication and 
engagement with clients and stakeholders, 
and new business development initiatives. 
Directorate: Business Services 
Investments 
This unit manages clients’ assets and 
invests surplus funds to meet clients’ 
immediate and long-term needs. It also 
manages the sale and purchase of 
properties on behalf of trust and deceased 
estate clients. 

Taxation Services 
Registered tax agents prepare, review and 
lodge income tax returns for trust and estate 
administration clients. 

Contracts Management 
Public Trustee contracts fall within two broad 
groups - those where the cost of purchasing 
goods and services for corporate needs are 
sourced from Government funds, and 
contracts where the cost of purchasing 
services are paid for from funds held on 
behalf of Public Trustee clients. 
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Business Support 
Staff provide a file and mail service, 
including security storage of Wills and other 
sensitive documents, as well as routine 
receipting and payments online, and 
purchase all office equipment and 
consumables. 

 
Directorate: Corporate Support 
Finance 
This unit manages the Public Trustee Bank 
Account and is responsible for operational 
and Common Account payments and 
receipts. 

It provides financial data to the Corporate 
Executive including the preparation of 
monthly operational reports and expenditure 
forecasts, quarterly key performance 
indicator analysis, budget analysis, budget 
statement preparation, and financial models 
and reports on the sustainability of services. 

Systems & Technology 
This business unit maintains the day-to-day 
operational support of Information 
Technology systems and delivers a number 
of key strategic projects. 

Training & Development 
The team assess training needs and develop 
and deliver in-house training and induction 
programs as well as coordinate external 
professional development enrolments. 

 
Human Resources 
This unit provides in-house recruitment and 
employment advice to management and 
staff and coordinates the Employee 
Development System, workers 
compensation and performance 
management. 

A summary of the performance of each unit 
appears in Report on Operations. 

 
 
 

Enabling Legislation 

The Public Trustee was established by the 
Public Trustee Act 1941 and is a Statutory 
Authority within the provisions of the 
Financial Management Act 2006. 

It receives administrative support from the 
Department of the Attorney General. 

Responsible Minister 
Honourable Michael Mischin LLB (Hons) 
BJuris (Hons) MLC Attorney General; 
Minister for Commerce 
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Our people take pride in their work and the 
value they contribute to the agency.  We 
recognise the knowledge and skills of our 
people and support their continuous learning 
and development. 

We respect the differing professional 
attributes that are developed and nurtured in 
our business areas and the rights of our 
people to provide objective, frank and 
fearless advice to their clients and the 
community 

4. Collaboration and Learning 

5. Professional Autonomy 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Our clients have varied service needs.  We 
strive to achieve and maintain credible and 
professional services to diverse client groups 
through effective communication and by 
making services relevant, responsive, 
accessible, accurate and fair. 

We are open, honest, impartial and ethical in 
our communications and decisions.  We take 
responsibility for our behaviours, which are 
governed by the legal system, agreed 
standards, and codes. 

We respect diversity and know that we 
sometimes have to treat our staff, the 
community and client groups differently to 
reach fair outcomes. We treat people with 
respect, courtesy and sensitivity and 
recognise their interests, rights, safety and 
welfare. 

The Public Trustee’s values include: 

2. Integrity and Accountability 

3. Equity and Fairness 

1. Excellent Service 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

The Public Trustee’s vision is to be a trusted 
organisation recognised for professionalism, 
integrity, and respect whose clients feel 
valued and protected. 

Its role is to enhance the lives of Western 
Australians by providing high quality and 
accessible trustee and asset management 
services. 

Our Organisational 
Structure 

Business Trainee graduation 

Vision, Role, Values 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 Overview 

  
 

Organisational Chart 
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 Overview 

 
                                                                                             Corporate Executive team 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Corporate Executive Committee profiles 
Public Trustee, Brian Roche BBus, MMgt has 26 years senior management experience in Local and State Government as well as over 10 years in 
the private sector. Prior to his appointment as Public Trustee he was a senior executive at the Department of Treasury. He is a Board member of the 
Art Gallery of Western Australia and Alzheimer’s (Western Australia) and a National Board Member of Alzheimer’s Australia. 
Director Trustee Services, Sean Conlin BBus, Grad Dip Acct, CA has 14 years public sector management experience, and 17 years financial 
services accounting and management experience in the private sector. 
Principal Legal Officer, Michael Bowyer LLB has 21 years legal advisory experience in the public sector and is a member of the Law Society’s 
Elder Law and Succession Committee. 
Director Business Development & Marketing, Etta Palumbo BPsych has 14 years professional services marketing experience and 14 years 
research, strategic planning and communications experience in the public and private sectors. She is a Board member of the Swancare Group. 
Director Business Services, Sarah Marmara BBus (Acct), CPA has 10 years public sector management experience and 11 years management, 
financial services and accounting experience in the private sector. 
Director Corporate Support, Terry Hearn BBus, Assoc Dip Bus has 34 years financial and management accounting experience in both the public 
and private sectors, including 27 years in public sector management. 

Administered Legislation 
The Attorney General and the Public Trustee administer the Public Trustee Act 1941 and the Public Trustee Regulations 1942 and the Public Trustee 
complies with more than 100 State or Commonwealth Acts in conducting its business. 
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Other key legislation impacting on 
our activities 
In the performance of its functions, the 
Public Trustee complies with relevant written 
laws including: 

 

 Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority Act 
1972 

  Administration Act 1903 

 Auditor General Act 2006 

 Corruption and Crime Commission Act 
2003 

 Criminal Property Confiscation Act 2000 

 Disability Services Act 1993 

  Equal Opportunity Act 1984 

 Financial Management Act 2006 

 Freedom of Information Act 1992 

 Guardianship and Administration Act 
1990 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Family and Provision Act 1972 

 Industrial Relations Act 1979 

 Legal Profession Act 2008 

 Non-contentious Probate Rules 1967 

 Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984 

 Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003 

 Public Sector Management Act 1994 

 Public Trustee Act 1941 

 Public Trustee Regulations 1942 

 Residential Tenancies Act 1987 

 Rules of the Supreme Court 1971 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Salaries and Allowances Act 1975 

 State Administrative Tribunal Act 2004 

 State Records Act 2000 

 State Supply Commission Act 1991 

 Trustee Companies Act 1987 

 Trustees Act 1962  

 Unclaimed Money Act 1990 

 Wills Act 1970 

 Workers Compensation and Injury 
Management Act 1981 

 Working With Children (Criminal Record 
Checking) Act 2004 

previous              contents                  next                                                                                                                                             Public Trustee Annual Report 2012/13            10 

http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_1_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_1_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_63_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_207_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_207_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_231_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_267_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_305_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_333_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_353_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_406_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_406_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_457_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_454_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_3558_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/pco/prod/FileStore.nsf/Documents/MRDocument:3914P/$FILE/NoncontiusProbtRu1967_04-b0-08.pdf?OpenElement
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_650_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_767_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_1964_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_821_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_2029_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_873_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_918_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_924_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/pco/prod/FileStore.nsf/Documents/MRDocument:7688P/$FILE/StateSplyCommAct1991_02-00-04.pdf?OpenElement
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_3942_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_1002_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_3480_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_1081_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_1090_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_1090_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_1095_homepage.html
http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_1095_homepage.html


 Overview 

Performance Management Framework 
The Public Trustee focuses on the goals of responsible financial management, achieving results in key service delivery areas for the benefit of all 
Western Australians, and ensuring economic activity is managed in a socially and environmentally responsible manner. 

The following shows these three goals and the specific outcomes we deliver for each goal while further information on the outcomes, achievements 
and future challenges relating to each goal appears in the rest of this annual report. 

Outcome Based Management Framework 
Financial and Economic Responsibility: responsible financial management through the efficient and effective delivery of services, encouraging 
economic activity and reducing regulatory burdens on the private sector. 

Desired outcome Services Indicators 
Achieve earning rate that maximises 
the investment potential of the fund 
within acceptable prudential levels 

Investments
Financial analysis

1.9(a) Common Account Earning Rate 
1.9(b) Public Trustee’s Common Account Performance vs WA State Treasury & CMT 

Benchmark Earning Rates (net basis); and 
1.9(c) Common Account Investment Cost per $ Invested 

Outcomes Based Service Delivery: greater focus on achieving results in key service delivery areas for the benefit of all Western Australians. 
Desired outcome Services Indicators 

Achieve high quality and accessible 
services that meet the needs of the 
community 

Trust Management
Deceased Estates

Wills
Private Administrator 

Support (PAS)

1.1 Extent to which trust management services meet the needs of clients 
1.2 Percentage of Western Australian deceased estates administered 
1.3 Extent to which Public Trustee maintains a market share in drawing Wills 
1.4 Percent of estates finalised within 12 months of being reported 
1.6 Cost per trust managed 
1.7 Cost per deceased estate administered 
1.8 Cost per Will prepared 

Social and Environmental Responsibility: ensuring economic activity is managed in a socially and environmentally responsible manner for the 
long-term benefit of the State. 

Desired outcome Services Indicators 
Provide services free of charge or for 
a fee that does not cover the cost of 
the service to those who cannot afford 
to pay 

Trust Management
PAS
Wills

Legal services
Client Services Centre

WA Will Bank

1.5 The percentage of clients who have services provided by the Public Trustee under 
an operating subsidy rebate 
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Changes to Outcome Based Management Framework 
The Public Trustee’s Outcome Based Management Framework did not change during 2012/13. 
 

Shared Responsibilities with Other Agencies 
The Public Trustee did not share any responsibilities with other agencies in 2012/13. It does however work collaboratively with a wide range of 
Commonwealth and State Government agencies to ensure accessible, effective and timely delivery of trustee and legal services to its clients, namely 
the elderly and ‘at risk’ Western Australians. 

Inter agency partnerships 
The Public Trustee is a member of the Alliance for the Prevention of Elder Abuse Western Australia (APEA WA), which is the peak body responsible 
for formulating policies and developing strategies for the prevention and identification of elder abuse. Members include representatives from both 
Government agencies and private sector community organisations including Advocare, Office of Senior Interests and Volunteering, Health, Office of 
the Public Advocate, Legal Aid, Police and the Disability Services Commission. 

 
Wills Seminar 
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 Our Performance 

OUR PERFORMANCE 

Actual Results versus Budget Targets 
A detailed explanation of the significant variations between actual and 
target is presented at Note 23(b) of the Notes to the Financial 
Statements. 
 

Financial 
Targets 

Target Actual Variation

Total cost of 
services (expense 
limit) ($,000s) 

22,406 23,600 (1,194)

Net cost of 
services ($,000s) 

1,174 (57)1 1,231

Approved full-time 
equivalent staff 

160.0 150.5 9.5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                 
1 Surplus due to capital expenditure being reimbursed to the Department of the Attorney General in addition to paying for 

recurrent expenditure. 

Summary of Key Performance Indicators 
Detailed performance indicator information relating to the services we 
provide appears at the end of this report. 
 

Key Performance Indicators  Target Actual Variation 
1.1 Extent to which trust management 
services meet the needs of clients 

80% 75% (5%) 

1.2 Percentage of Western Australian 
deceased estates administered by the 
Public Trustee 

8.5% 5.7% (2.8%)2 

1.3 Extent to which Public Trustee 
maintains a market share in drawing wills 
naming the Public Trustee as executor 

12% 11% (1%) 

1.4 Percent of estates finalised within 12 
months of being reported 

67% 59% (8%)3 

1.5 Percentage of clients who have 
services provided by the Public Trustee 
under an operating subsidy 

35% 45.8% 10.8%4 

1.6 Cost per trust managed $2,143 $1,998 $145 

1.7 Cost per deceased estate 
administered 

$2,756 $2,810 ($54) 

1.8 Cost per Will prepared $520 $780 ($260)5 

1.9 (a) Return from Common Account for 
clients 

na 1.5-
3.34%

na 

1.9 (b) Common Account earning rate na 5.55% na 

1.9 (c) Common Account investment 
cost/$ invested 

na 0.03% na 

 

                                                 
2 Due to Public Trustee increasing the threshold to $20,000 to allow beneficiaries to informally administer the estates themselves. 

3 Average time taken to complete an estate, if completed within 12months, was 6.7 months, based on the date of final 

completion. 
4 Due to an increase in number of client being referred to the Public Trustee from the State Administrative Tribunal. 
5 Due to a lower number of wills prepared as a result of a temporary re-assignment of legal staff to clear a backlog of urgent client 

legal matters. 
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Report on Operations 
Trustee Services 
Demand for core services continued the 
increasing trend. 
 
 
 2011/12 20/12/13
New trusts 774 842
New court 
trusts 

211 204

Total trusts 4,808 5,014
 
 
 
 2011/12 20/12/13
New SAT orders 522 568
Total SAT clients 2,516 2,736
SAT reviews 635 649
 
 
 
 2011/12 20/12/13
Probate 
applications 

490 537

 
 
 
 2011/12 20/12/13
Account 
examinations 

1,673 1,847

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Trust Team Three 
 
Trust Management 
The total number of new clients including 
appointments by the State Administrative 
Tribunal (SAT) was 842, an increase of 8.8% 
over the previous year. 

The total number of trusts on hand increased 
to 5,014, an increase of 4.3% over the 
previous year. 

SAT referred 568 new cases to the Public 
Trustee, an increase of 8.8% over the 
previous year. The continuing high level of 
SAT appointments of the Public Trustee can 
be attributed to the increase in the number of 
people with decision-making disabilities who 
may have dementia, an intellectual disability, 
mental illness or brain damage, or substance 
abuse issues, and who are susceptible to 
neglect, abuse or exploitation. 

The number of new court trusts for the year 
from the District Court and the Assessor of 
Criminal Injuries Compensation decreased  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

slightly to 204. The size of these trusts 
varies from thousands of dollars to millions 
of dollars. 

SAT also reviewed 649 administration orders 
for which the Public Trustee was the 
appointed administrator. 

Estate Management 
The number of applications to the probate 
division of the Supreme Court made by the 
Public Trustee increased to 537, which 
equates to an 8.3% market share. 

Private Administrator Support (PAS) 
PAS conducted 1,847 account examinations 
where total assets exceeded $694 million 
and issued one certificate of loss during the 
year for $8,120. 

The Public Trustee also worked closely with 
the Office of the Public Advocate to present 
four training seminars for newly appointed 
private administrators. 
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Legal Services 
This Directorate now consists of two 
business units - Legal and Wills. 
 
 
 
 
Matters 2011/12 2012/13
New 249 232
Finalised 208 216
On hand 531 547
 
 
 
 
 2011/12 2012/13
Wills  2,862 2,916
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Legal 
As at 30 June 2013 Legal had 547 legal 
matters on hand (not including estate 
distributions, standard probate and 
conveyancing applications and various other 
routine and minor matters). It received 232 
new cases and finalised 216 matters during 
the year. 

A significant proportion of the legal matters 
result in court actions, predominantly in the 
Supreme Court. 

Most of those concern issues arising from 
the administration of the estates of 
represented persons, deceased estates and 
trusts. They include recovery of 
misappropriated assets and proving Wills in 
difficult circumstances. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

                            
                                          Legal Seminar 

 
 
 
 
Wills 
The Wills business unit was brought into the 
Legal Services Directorate. 

The majority of Wills are now signed and 
witnessed at the end of the Wills 
appointment. 

2,916 new Wills were prepared during the 
year, with more than 90% of clients reporting 
very high levels of satisfaction with the 
service. 

The average waiting time for an appointment 
decreased from 4½ weeks as at July 2012 to 
2½ weeks as at June 2013. 
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Business Development & 
Marketing 
This Directorate continued activities that 
were aimed at raising public awareness and 
understanding of the Public Trustee. 
 
 
 

2011/12 2012/13
Phone calls 58,062 66,357
Reception 7,559 10,626
Email/mail 3,754 7,107
WA Will Bank deposits 725 652
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Out in the community 
 
Client Service Centre 
Staff answered 66,357 telephone calls in 
2012/13, an increase of 14% from the 
previous year. 

Reception enquiries jumped 40% to 10,626 
due to a new, highly visible ground floor 
shop front. 

Email and mail enquiries increased 89% to 
7107 suggesting a growing engagement with 
the public through our website. 

WA Will Bank 
This is a free community service for all 
Western Australians to store their Wills in the 
Public Trustee’s purpose-built fire-resistant 
vault. It held 107,950 Wills in safe custody 
as at 30 June 2013. 
 

Marketing & Communications 
This business unit achieved successful 
results with: 

 635 attendees at 10 Wills and Deceased 
Estates public education seminars; 

 participation in expos and community 
based-talks; 

 regional promotion of the Public Trustee 
and Wills service; 

 regular release of information to the 
media to raise awareness of issues or 
misconceptions relating to Wills, 
deceased estate administration, enduring 
powers of attorney, trust management, 
elder abuse and financial abuse; 

 publishing and distributing the Trust 
Matters stakeholder bulletins; 

 refinement of information on 
www.publictrustee.wa.gov.au 

 building alliances with key shareholder 
groups; and  

 communicating changes to intestate 
estates under the Aboriginal Affairs 
Planning Authority Act 1972. 
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Business Services 
 
 
 
Funds under 
management 

2011/12 
$,000s 

2012/13
$,000s

Common 
Account 1,258,893 1,141,037

PTIFs 132,067 152,288
Bank deposits 77,387 104,519
Equities 24,039 25,996
Unit trusts 5,951 8,425
Life policies 1,443 2,983
Real estate 372,183 372,167
Other assets 30,857 31,652
TOTAL $1,902,823 1,839,071
 
 
 
 
 
Fund type 

30/6/12 
$,000s 

30/6/13
$,000s

Cash Nil Nil
Conservative 18,337 27,720
Growth 111,701 122,141
Growth Plus 2,028 2,426
TOTAL $132,067 $152,288
 
 
 
 

30/6/12 30/6/13
Properties sold 220 175
Value $ 74,821,614 72,078,175
 
 
 

 
 
Common Account 
The Common Account operates like a cash 
management account with funds available at 
call. As at 30 June 2013 the Public Trustee 
managed $1.13 billion in cash and short 
term deposits with the Western Australian 
Treasury Corporation and banks rated A2 to 
A1+, as well as one CBD building valued at 
$57 million. Cash deposits included $824 
million held in trust pending the outcome of 
an appeal in the Bell Resources court case. 

Clients received interest distributions higher 
than average market returns for 2012/13. 

Public Trustee Investment Funds (PTIFs) 
The Public Trustee continued to use the 
PTIFs for investment of clients’ funds to 
enhance long-term capital and income 
growth. Regular reviews of clients’ 
investments are undertaken and portfolios 
adjusted for any changes in circumstances 
and needs of the clients going forward. 

All new clients with funds that can be 
invested outside the Common Account will 
be invested in the most appropriate PTIF for 
their individual needs. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Property Function 
During 2012/13 the Investments unit valued 
and sold 175 properties for a total value of 
$72 million. 

Contracts Management 
Contracts were awarded during 2012/13 for 
provision of services for: 
 Client Counselling and Case 

Management Services, and 
 Financial Planning, Portfolio Management 

and Brokerage Services 

Taxation Services 
The unit reviewed 1,670 files and lodged 
1,405 income tax returns in 2012/13. 

 

 

 
Public Trustee peer supporters 
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As the contracted audit provider, RSM Bird 
Cameron conducted reviews that identified 
many areas of strengths, and highlighted 
opportunities for further improvement, and 
corrective action was undertaken to further 
address and strengthen internal controls. 

The Public Trustee focused on a major 
upgrade of its main computer operating 
system MATE (Management and Trust 
Environment), a server upgrade and 
interfacing software, and automating 
processes relating to Wills and address 
validation. 

Corporate Support 
This Directorate provides finance, IT, training 
and development, and human resources 
services. 
 
 
 
 

2011/12 2012/13
Operational 
budget 

$21.9 million $22.4 million 

Revenue 
budget 

$20.8 million $21.2 million 

 
 
 
 

Common Account 30/6/12 30/6/13
Balance $15.4 

million 
$15.2 
million 

Total $ value of 
receipts/disbursements 
during the year 

$2.6 
billion 

$3.2 
billion 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Manager training 

 

 
Finance 
The Public Trustee had an operational 
expenditure budget of $22.4 million and a 
revenue budget of $21.2 million, an increase 
of 2.3% and 1.9% respectively. Finance 
managed the Public Trustee Common 
Account Bank Account, which averaged a 
daily balance of $15.2 million by coordinating 
the significant volume of financial 
transactions relating to clients' trust money, 
with receipts and disbursements in excess of 
$3.2 billion, an increase of 23% from the 
previous year. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Systems & Technology 

Internal Audit 
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Achievements 
During 2012/13 we achieved the following 
outcomes, which are additional to our normal 
day-to-day activities: 

 receipting ex gratia payments on behalf of 
clients following the successful lodgement 
of claims under the Stolen Wages 
Reparation Scheme; 

 reviewing the client database to identify 
which clients were eligible for various 
other Government initiatives (for example 
Country High Schools Hostels Ex gratia 
scheme) introduced during the year; 

 negotiating the write-off of debts on behalf 
of clients under the Bulk Debts 
Negotiation Project; 

 comprehensively reviewing fees and 
charges; 

 instigating and achieving interagency co-
operation and understanding so that 
unclaimed bodies can be buried in a more 
timely manner; 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 participating in the Office of the Auditor 
General’s performance audit which 
examined the Public Trustee’s 
administration of trust accounts. The 
results of the audit will be tabled in 
Parliament in September 2013; 

 recording the corporate knowledge of the 
Public Trustee Act 1941 and related law, 
as an important succession planning tool; 

 revising outsourcing practices to private 
legal practitioners; and 

 developing a legal billing system to 
generate accounts to charge fees in 
appropriate cases. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Looking Ahead in 2013/14 
The Public Trustee will:  

 establish a Community Foundation; 
 promote awareness of WA Will Bank and 

Public Trustee’s Will drafting and 
deceased estate administration services; 

 build alliances with key shareholder 
groups; 

 research demand trends to plan for 
future needs; 

 undertake office-wide business process 
reviews to identify more efficient ways to 
operate; 

 undertake a business process review of 
our Business Support unit; and 

 pilot improved use of electronic 
documents in Records Management. 

 

Public Trustee in a Men’s Shed 
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 Significant Issues 

Significant Issues 
Key impacts that will shape the Public 
Trustee business over the next five years. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Financial performance 
Lower interest rates and volatile share 
market prices affect the investment 
performance that the Public Trustee can 
secure on funds invested on behalf of 
clients. The downturn in shares decreased 
the return on investments of some of our 
clients with long-term needs. 

The lower returns, together with higher 
costs of living and wage increases for 
service providers such as carers, impacts 
on many of our clients for whom we act as 
trustee and adds to the complexity of 
managing client’s affairs. 

Government policies 
State and Commonwealth Governments’ 
efficiency dividends, decentralisation of 
services, increased outsourcing and the 
need to maintain self-funding remain a 
challenge. 

The drive by State and Commonwealth 
Governments to develop and grow 
regional areas through delivery of services 
will be difficult for us to implement as 
Western Australians are serviced from a 
single office based in the Perth. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Ageing population 
Between 2006-2026, Western Australia’s 
population is projected to increase by 30% 
and the population of people aged 65 
years and over is projected to increase by 
66.9%. WA has already experienced the 
largest increase in the number of persons 
aged 65 years and older in Australia6, 
while the number of people aged 85 years 
and over increased by 32.7% between 
2004 and 20097. 

This demographic change, together with 
trends such as the increasing prevalence 
of mental illness, growth in multicultural 
communities and blended families, and 
breakdown of family relationships, will 
continue to increase the demand for trust 
management and estate administration 
services. 

Other factors such as the increasing 
incidence of dementia and longer life 
expectancies and an overall rise in the 
number and complexity of cases involving 
people with decision-making disabilities 
will also contribute to the demand for 
trustee and executor services. 

There are further challenges in the 
increasing volume and complexity of work 
from the State Administrative Tribunal. 

                                                 
6 3201.0 – Population by Age and Sex, Australian 
States and Territories, June 2010.  
7 3235.0 – Population by Age and Sex, Regions of 
Australia, 2009, Aug 2010. 
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Significant Issues 
Key impacts that will shape the Public 
Trustee business over the next five years. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Competition 
The trustee and financial marketplace is 
increasingly competitive and private 
trustee companies target the most 
profitable business with attractive 
incentives, leaving the low value, more 
difficult cases to the Public Trustee. The 
perception of ‘trustee of last resort’, 
together with market concerns about 
caseloads and fully disclosed fees, 
impacts negatively on the Public Trustee’s 
corporate image and ability to compete. 

There is also a proliferation of Will drawing 
services provided by lawyers, banks, 
financial and charitable institutions, some 
with State-wide networks or the capacity to 
bundle Wills with other services. 

A growing number of people are preparing 
their own Wills using easily accessible do-
it-yourself Will kits and various legal firms 
are increasing their advertising to 
counteract the Public Trustee’s efforts to 
break into regional centres. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Technology and user resistance 
Western Australia has the second 
highest Internet connectivity in the 
country with 75.1% of dwellings having 
an Internet connection8. The uptake of 
technology, such as smart phones and 
tablet computers, continues to change 
the nature in which clients communicate 
with the Public Trustee and adds to 
expectations of immediacy in client 
relationships. 
As a result of innovation and rapid 
product development, the rate at which 
processes and technologies become 
obsolete or need to be adapted in 
response is increasing. 
 
Compliance 
The risk of contingent liabilities for work 
performed in the past continues to 
influence current policy and procedures 
and limits innovation in the way the Public 
Trustee performs. 

Compliance requirements, especially in 
the superannuation, company law, 
financial planning and regulatory fields 
have become more complex including the 
ability to obtain information from 
superannuation funds and the need for 
legal officers to witness staff signatures. 

 

 
                                                 
8 4102.0 Australian Social Trends, Data Cube – 
Other areas of social concern, June 2011. 
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OUR PEOPLE 
 
This section provides an overview on our 
people, initiatives, safety practices, codes 
of conduct, diversity and equality. 
 
 
Training (hrs) 2011/12 2012/13
External 520 90
Internal 915 2,611
Total 1,435 2,701
 
 
Staff profile 2011/12 2012/13
Full-time 
permanent  

134 128

Full-time 
contract  

9 12

Part-time 
measured on an 
FTE basis  

8.3 9.5

On secondment 2 1
Staff FTE  153.3 150.5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Corporate Challenge winning teams 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Staff Development 
The Public Trustee is committed to 
developing its employees by building a 
highly skilled, professional and fair 
workforce with the ability to adapt to 
changing business technology and the 
environment. 

Employees received over 360 days of in-
house (97%) and externally provided (3%) 
training. 

Wellness program 
A committee of staff volunteers coordinate 
the Wellness Program. Activities including 
team sports, exercise classes, and health 
consultations were well supported by staff 
who reported benefits in general health, 
wellbeing and morale. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Employee Assistance Program 
PPC Worldwide provided 9 employees 
and/or their immediate families with 
professional counselling for an average of 
2.66 sessions. 

Unions 
Public Trustee staff are members of the 
Community and Public Sector Union/Civil 
Service Association. A Joint Consultative 
Committee of management and union 
representatives meets every eight weeks. 

Industrial action 
No industrial action was taken by Public 
Trustee employees. 
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The Public Sector Code of Ethics is 
accessible to all Public Trustee employees 
through the intranet, notice boards and 
references in relevant policies and 
procedures. Five senior staff attended the 
Department of the Attorney General’s 
Accountable and Ethical Decision Making 
in the WA Public Sector training workshop.  

Compliance with Public Sector 
Code of Ethics  

No reports of non-compliance with the 
Code of Conduct were found. 

All staff receive an overview of the Public 
Sector Code of Conduct at induction as 
well as a copy of the Public Trustee 
Conflict Management Resources Kit to 
address bullying in the workplace.  

Every two years, all staff are required to 
attend WorkSafeWA’s refresher workshop 
on Bullying and Conflict Management to 
reinforce the need to create a workplace 
that fosters mutual respect and is 
intolerant of any form of harassment that 
creates a risk to health and safety. 

Compliance with Public Sector 
Code of Conduct  

No reports of non-compliance with the 
Code of Ethics were received. 

1.  In the administration of the Public 
Trustee, I have complied with the Public 
Sector Standards in Human Resource 
Management, the Western Australian 
Public Sector Code of Ethics and our 
Code of Conduct.  

 
 
 
Staff gender 2011/12 2012/13
 M/F M/F
Professional 7/11.7 8/11.9
Clerical 67.8/66.8 63.8/66.8
Total 74.8/78.5 71.8/78.7
 
 
 Workforce 
profile 

2011/12 2012/13

Business 
Development  

14.4 8

Business 
Services  

20.6 20.6

Executive/ 
Administration  

3.6 3.6

Corporate 
Support  

12 12

Legal  10.7 17.3
Trustee 
Services 

92 89

Total  153.3 150.5
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Sector Management Act 
1994 S31(1) Compliance 

2.  I have put in place procedures 
designed to ensure such compliance 
and conducted appropriate internal 
assessments to satisfy myself that the 
statement made in 1 is correct.  

3.  The applications made for breach of 
standards review and the 
corresponding outcomes for the 
reporting period are:  

 Number lodged: one (withdrawn) 
 Number of breaches found: nil 
 Number still under review: nil 

 
Brian Roche BBus MMgt 
PUBLIC TRUSTEE 
Accountable Authority 
9 September 2013 
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 2011/12 2012/13
Advertised vacancies  14 8
Appointment Pools  4/223 3/209
 
 
 
 
 

Actual Results9 Results against Target Measure 2010/11 2012/13 Target Comment 
Number of fatalities 0 0 0 n/a
Lost time injury 
and/or disease 
incidence rate 

0% 0.625% 0 or 10% 
reduction increase

Lost time 
injury/disease 
severity rate 

0 100% 0 or 10% 
reduction increase

Percentage of 
injured workers 
returned to work: 
(i) within 13 wks 
(ii) within 26 wks 

78% 
0 

100%
0

>80%
>80%

achieved
achieved

Percentage of 
managers trained 
in OHS and injury 
management 
responsibilities 

<50% 94% >80% achieved

 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                 
9 Three year trend 

Recruitment, Selection & Appointment Standard 
Eight permanent and fixed-term vacancies of more than six months 
were advertised from across all business areas, including three 
appointment pools, which were covered by the Recruitment, Selection 
and Appointment Standard, and attracted a total of 209 applicants. 

The Public Trustee’s approach of conducting information sessions 
about the nature of the work for trust and estate managers provides 
applicants with a more comprehensive initial understanding of the 
Public Trustee’s clients and the nature of our work, resulting in higher 
levels of job satisfaction and employee retention among new recruits. 

Occupational, Safety, Health and Injury Management 
The Public Trustee complies with the injury management requirements 
of the Workers Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981. 

The Public Trustee is committed to occupational safety and health and 
injury management and appoints trained staff to an Occupational 
Safety and Health Committee that meets at least quarterly to ensure 
compliance, and contribute to policy, procedures and training.  

Committee representatives: 
 conduct quarterly safety audits and report on and resolve issues 

where the safety and health of employees may be at risk; and  
 support the continuation of employer-funded programs such as the 

Wellness and flu vaccination programs. 
 
Mudrush 2012 

http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_1090_homepage.html
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Disability Access and Inclusion 
Plan Outcomes 
In compliance with s29 of the Disability 
Services Act 1993 the Public Trustee 
recognises its responsibilities under the 
Department of Attorney General’s Disability 
Access and Inclusion Plan 2013/18 by 
ensuring clients with physical, intellectual, 
sensory or cognitive disabilities, their 
families and carers are provided with 
professional and appropriate services. 

 

 

 

 

Outcome 1: 
People with disabilities have the same 
opportunities as others to access the 
services and any events organised by us. 

We offer a mobile Wills service to clients 
who are severely disabled or infirm and may 
need to have their Will prepared at their 
home, a care facility or hospital. Wills staff 
visited 254 clients living within a 50km radius 
of the CBD. 

Trust Managers meet their clients at home or 
other appropriate locations and all events 
organised by the Public Trustee were 
accessible to people with disabilities. 

Wills Week Community Awareness seminars 
were organised with the accessibility needs 
of the attendees considered. 

 

 

 

 

Outcome 2: 
People with disabilities have the same 
opportunities as other people to access our 
building and facilities. 

Our 553 Hay St building has access 
standards greater than required under 
legislation to assist the specific needs of our 
clients. It has purpose-built customer service 
facilities on the ground floor for clients, and 
holds hold large group public seminars on 
the 1st floor. 

All external events organised by us used 
wheelchair-friendly venues and an audioloop 
for presentations. 

 

Outcome 3: 
People with disabilities receive information in 
a format that will enable them to access the 
information as readily as other people are 
able to access it. 

We provide access to Auslan interpreters 
and brochures and publications include large 
fonts and alternative versions including 
audio tape, CD, large print and Braille are 
available. The Public Trustee’s website 
includes large print viewing. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Outcome 4: 
People with disabilities receive the same 
level and quality of service from the staff as 
other people receive. 

Most of our Trust Management clients live 
with some type of disability or impairment, 
whether aged, infirm, or living with mental 
illness or impaired cognitive skills. 

Staff receive training to help them effectively 
service clients with disabilities. 

 
Outcome 5: 
People with disabilities have the same 
opportunities as other people to make 
complaints. 

All clients can access the Department of the 
Attorney General’s Customer Feedback 
Management System to make complaints via 
a selection of feedback options. 

 

Outcome 6: 
People with disabilities have the same 
opportunities as other people to participate 
in any public consultation. 

We welcome feedback from people with 
disabilities and include disability support 
organisations in our stakeholder 
engagement program. 
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DISCLOSURES & LEGAL 
COMPLIANCE 

Ministerial Directions 
No Ministerial directives were received 
during 2012/13. 

Other Governance 
Disclosures 
Contracts with Senior Officers 
At the date of reporting, other than normal 
contracts of employment of service, no 
Senior Officers, or firms of which Senior 
Officers are members, or entities in which 
Senior Officers have substantial interests 
had any interests in existing or proposed 
contracts with the Public Trustee and Senior 
Officers. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Other Financial Disclosures 
Pricing policies of services 
Under Treasurer’s Instruction 903 section 
13(i), the Public Trustee is required to advise 
of the policies underlying the pricing of its 
goods and services. 

The pricing policy adopted by the Public 
Trustee in setting fees and charges is 
contained in legislation under the Public 
Trustee Act 1941 and the Annual 
Agreement. 

Fees and charges are reviewed annually in 
the last quarter and proposed changes for 
the coming financial year are contained in 
the Annual Agreement between the Public 
Trustee and the Attorney General to be 
signed in June of each year. 

The Public Trustee can waive fees (either in 
whole or part) that were incurred under the 
scales of fees that have operated since 1 
July 2008. Any fees incurred under earlier 
scales require the consent of the Attorney 
General to be waived. 

This year the Public Trustee completed a 
further comprehensive review of its fees and 
charges as part of its strategy to achieve full 
cost recovery and self-funding. 
Subsequently Cabinet have approved the 
introduction of 18 new fees plus increases to 
its fees above CPI for the 2013/14 year. 

 
 
 

 
 

Capital Projects 
There were no new capital projects during 
the year. A sum of $54,000 was expended to 
finalise the building relocation project. 

Summary of Annual Agreement 
2012/13 
In compliance with s. 6B of the Public 
Trustee Act 1941, the following is a 
summary of the agreement between the 
Attorney General and the Public Trustee 
from 1 July 2012 to 30 June 2013. 

Consolidated Account 
If the total fees collected: 
 do not exceed $12,483,000, then all of 

those fees shall be paid to the 
Consolidated Account;  

 exceed $12,483,000, then a minimum of 
$12,483,000shall be paid to the 
Consolidated Account. 

The Department of the Attorney General will 
retain any fees paid to the Consolidated 
Account via a net appropriation 
determination, to finance the Public 
Trustee’s expenditure. 

Indemnity Reserve 
The Public Trustee may credit to this 
Reserve from its account entitled “Retained 
Earnings”, any or all of the retained 
earnings, and apply moneys in the Indemnity 
Reserve for a number of uses including to 
settle, compromise and pay the claims, 
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demands and costs of clients or other 
persons who have suffered loss or damage 
for which the Public Trustee, in its corporate 
capacity, may be liable at law. 

Business Development Reserve 
The Public Trustee may credit to this 
Reserve from its account entitled “Retained 
Earnings”, any or all of the retained earnings 
for the period; credit at least $5,500,000 of 
the balance of interest received; and expects 
to collect and retain surplus fees of 
$3,500,000 in the Business Development 
Reserve. 

The Public Trustee shall pay $2,615,000 
from this Reserve to the Consolidated 
Account and an additional $5,651,000 from 
this Reserve to the Consolidated Account. 

The Public Trustee may apply moneys in this 
Reserve to:  
 pay the costs of implementing new 

business services; 
 meet shortfalls in estimated retained 

revenue; 
 self-fund any shortfall in budgeted 

recurrent expenditure; 
 pay costs of reviewing the Wills function 

and establish and maintain an automated 
Wills drawing application; 

 pay the costs of refurbishing, refitting and 
relocating to 553 Hay Street, Perth; and 

 pay other costs of implementing the 
Public Trustee and Trustee Companies 
Legislation Amendment Act 2008. 

 

 
Common Account Investment Reserve 
The Public Trustee may credit to this 
Reserve any or all of its Common Account 
Retained Earnings and apply moneys in the 
Common Account Investment Reserve to:  
 stabilise Common Account interest paid 

to estates;  
 meet losses on Common Account 

investments; and  
 maintain Common Account assets. 

Transfers Between Reserves 
The Public Trustee may transfer from the: 
 Indemnity Reserve to the Business 

Development Reserve if this is in 
accordance with actuarial advice;  

 Business Development Reserve to the 
Indemnity Reserve if this is in accordance 
with actuarial advice; and 

 Common Account Investment Reserve to 
the Business Development Reserve. 

Strategic Common Accounts 
The Public Trustee shall operate the: 
 Cash strategic investment account; 
 Conservative strategic investment 

account; 
 Growth strategic investment account; and 
 Growth Plus strategic investment 

account. 
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Governance committees 
The Public Trustee is a body corporate and 
is responsible for the administration of the 
Public Trustee, in accordance with section 4 
of the Public Trustee Act 1941. 

A management team, comprising the Public 
Trustee, Directors of Trustee Services, 
Business Development & Marketing, 
Business Services and Corporate Support, 
the Principal Legal Officer and the Executive 
Officer, make up the Corporate Executive of 
the Public Trustee. This team is responsible 
for the development and implementation of 
policies and strategies for the delivery of 
trustee and asset management services to 
the people of Western Australia. 

There are five governance committees, 
which are sub-committees of the Public 
Trustee’s Corporate Executive (CorpEx) 
committee that meets bi-monthly. 

The role of each committee is to advise and 
make recommendations to the CorpEx on 
areas covered in its terms of reference. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Investment Committee 
Members include the Public Trustee, 
Directors of Trustee Services, Business 
Services and Corporate Support, an 
independent external Member and the 
Manager Financial Investments who provide 
guidance and direction, and review the 
Public Trustee Investment Funds. 

Interest Rate Committee 
Members include the Public Trustee, 
Directors of Trustee Services, Business 
Services and Corporate Support, and the 
Manager Financial Investments who set 
interest rates for the Common Account and 
review its performance. 

Tenders Committee 
Members include the Public Trustee, 
Director Business Services and a 
representative from the Department of 
Attorney General’s (DotAG) Contract & 
Procurement Services Branch who 
recommend the awarding of contracts where 
the cost of purchasing services is paid from 
funds held on behalf of Public Trustee clients 
and oversee the due diligence of all 
contracts. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Risk Management and Audit Committee 
Members include the CorpEx, DotAG’s 
Management Assurance, Office of the 
Auditor Generals’ representative and an 
independent member with risk management 
experience who oversee compliance and 
statutory responsibilities, and internal 
accounting controls, and review internal 
audit and the internal audit plan. 

Occupational Health and Safety 
Committee 
Members include staff representatives from 
all floors, Manager Human Resources and 
the Director Corporate Support who promote 
a safe and healthy working environment and 
provide advice and support on any areas of 
concern. 

Committee memberships 
The Public Trustee is a member of a number 
of DotAG committees including the 
Corporate Executive Committee, 
Substantive Equality Steering Committee, 
and the Disability Access Inclusion Plan 
Committee, and external committees 
including the Australian Guardianship and 
Administration Council and the Alliance 
Against the Prevention Of Elder Abuse 
(WA). It is a member of the Financial 
Services Council (FSC) and actively 
participates through a number of FSC 
committees in matters concerning the 
trustee industry. 
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The Public Trustee’s induction program 
includes employee roles and responsibilities 
for complying with the recordkeeping plan, 
and operational policy and procedures are 
included in the web-based Knowledgebase. 

The Public Trustee has complied with the 
State Records Commission’s compliance 
requirements and a further destruction of 
records was completed during 2012/13. 

Substantive Equality 
The Public Trustee is part of and follows the 
overall Department of the Attorney General's 
(DotAG) Policy Framework for Substantive 
Equality. 

As a result of a pilot study in 2011/12, the 
review process of all Public Trustee policy 
and procedure now includes specific 
attention to ensure that existing and new 
policies and procedures promote sensitivity 
to the different needs of client groups and 
eliminate systemic racial discrimination. 

Freedom of Information Requests 
Two valid applications were received in 
2012/13. 

Customer Feedback 
The Public Trustee uses the DotAG 
customer feedback management system to 
record and track complaints, compliments 
and suggestions from clients and members 
of the public. 

The Public Trustee received 60 complaints, 
28 compliments and six suggestions. 
Complaints and suggestions covered a 
range of areas and review of this feedback 
enabled the Public Trustee to implement a 
number of business improvements. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recordkeeping 
The Public Trustee uses the DotAG 
recordkeeping system for administrative 
records. 

Under s19 of the State Records Act 2000, 
the Public Trustee’s Recordkeeping Plan 
(RKP) was approved in August 2012 by the 
State Records Commission and a 
submission for a new five-year plan is 
expected to be submitted by the DotAG by 
31 August 2015. 

The Public Trustee Recordkeeping Plan 
relates to the retention and disposal 
schedule applicable to Public Trustee 
records and covers client files (seven years), 
Part A sub files (20 years) and Wills (99 
years). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Business Support Unit 
 

 

 

http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/pco/prod/FileStore.nsf/Documents/MRDocument:2144P/$FILE/StateRecrdsAct2000_00-c0-06.pdf?OpenElement
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Other Legal Requirements 
Advertising 
In compliance with s175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907, the Public 
Trustee reports the following expenditure in advertising, market 
research, polling, direct mail, and media advertising: 

 Total expenditure was $127,791.93 
 Expenditure was incurred in the following areas:  

$
Advertising agencies Orange Design 5,800.00
Market research Survey Monkey 292.53
 Catalyse Pty Ltd 21,761.25
Polling  0
Direct mail Lasermail 2,226.53
Media advertising Sensis 5,120.46
 Adcorp 17,933.65
 Australian Seniors 714.00
 Market Creations 1,440.00
 Chung Wah 2,700.00
 State Law Publisher 3,766.96
 DPS Publishing 9,509.08
 White Pages 12,050.00
 Optimum Media Decisions 44,477.47
 TOTAL 127,791.93

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Auditor’s Opinion 

previous              contents                  next                                                                                                                                             Public Trustee Annual Report 2012/13            30 

http://www.slp.wa.gov.au/legislation/statutes.nsf/main_mrtitle_290_homepage.html


 Disclosures & Legal Compliance 

previous              contents                  next                                                                                                                                             Public Trustee Annual Report 2012/13            31 

 

 
 

 

 
 



 Financial Statements 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Certification of Financial Statements 
 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013 

 

 

The accompanying financial statements of the Public Trustee have been 

prepared in compliance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 

2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial 

transactions for the financial year ended 30 June 2013 and the financial 

position as at 30 June 2013. 

 

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances, which would 

render the particulars included in the financial statements misleading or 

inaccurate. 

 

     
Natalia Gavrilova Brian Roche 
BAcct/BAud, MPA, CA BBus MMgt 

Chief Finance Officer Accountable Authority 

12 September 2013 12 September 2013 
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 30 June 2013 
 
 
 Note 2013

  $
2012

  $
COST OF SERVICES  
EXPENSES  
Write offs 6 275,654 479,710
Employee benefits expense 7 13,851,070 13,422,031
Depreciation  7 1,462,684 1,030,427
Administration expenses 7 3,472,428 3,872,723
Accommodation expenses 7 2,445,956 2,244,939
Corporate service expenses 7 2,366,750 1,989,581
Loss on disposal of non-current assets 8 1,159 -
Total expenses before payments to 
Consolidated Account 23,875,701 23,039,411
  

Fees paid to Consolidated Account 9 14,841,745 15,376,869
Surplus Common Account Interest paid to 
Consolidated Account 10(a) 5,651,000 3,789,762

Other payments into Consolidated Account 
from reserves  10(b) 2,720,013 7,580,513

Total cost of services  47,088,459 49,786,555
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

 Note 2013
  $

2012 
  $ 

   

INCOME   
Fees and charges  11,770,109 10,091,684 
Public Trustee 6% fee from Common 
Account 25(a) 3,437,575 4,624,576 

Management Fee from Strategic Common 
Accounts   638,815 604,313 

Receipts from Common Account Surplus 
Interest 25(a) 8,651,000 5,789,762 

Interest revenue 25(a) 1,424,955 1,790,486 
Other revenue  34,838 25,820 
Total Income other than income from State 
Government 25,957,292 22,926,641 

Net Cost of Service before Income from 
State Government 14(b) 21,131,167 26,859,914 
   

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT   
   

Recoups and other revenue from the 
Department of the Attorney General 7 257,931 102,996 

Corporate revenue allocation from the 
Department of the Attorney General 7 186,042 639,073 

Services received free of charge from the 
Department of the Attorney General 7,21 23,146,496 21,817,632 

Total income from State Government  23,590,469 22,559,701 
   

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD  2,459,302 (4,300,213) 
   

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  - - 
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE 
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD  2,459,302 (4,300,213) 

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with 
the accompanying notes. 
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Statement of Financial Position 
For the year ended 30 June 2013 
 Note 2013 2012
  $ $
ASSETS    
Current Assets    
Cash - Investment in Common Account 14(a) 29,633,697 27,727,658
Receivables 13 143,092 294,669
Total Current Assets  29,776,789 28,022,327
  
TOTAL ASSETS  29,776,789 28,022,327
  
LIABILITIES  
Current Liabilities  
Accrued Fees Payable to Consolidated 
Account 12 585,489 1,706,059

Payables  430,971 15,241
Total Current Liabilities  1,016,460 1,721,300
  
TOTAL LIABILITIES  1,016,460 1,721,300
  
NET ASSETS  28,760,329 26,301,027
 
  

EQUITY  
Indemnity reserve 11(a) 6,330,858 9,353,013
Business development reserve 11(a) 16,819,264 11,554,273
Retained earnings 11(b) 5,610,207 5,393,741
TOTAL EQUITY  28,760,329 26,301,027
The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanying notes. 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended 30 June 2013 
 Note 2013 2012 

  $ $ 
    
Balance of equity at start of period  26,301,027 30,601,240 
     
RESERVES    
Indemnity Reserve   
Balance at start of period   9,353,013 9,296,648 
Transfers to reserves  0 575,298 
Transfers from reserves  (3,022,155) (518,933) 
Balance at end of period 11(a) 6,330,858 9,353,013 
   
Business Development Reserve   
Balance at start of period   11,554,273 17,665,057 
Transfers to reserves  13,618,734 5,789,762 
Transfers from reserves  (8,353,743) (11,900,546) 
Balance at end of period 11(a) 16,819,264 11,554,273 
   
RETAINED EARNINGS    
Balance at start of period  5,393,741 3,639,535 
Total comprehensive income for the period  2,459,302 (4,300,213) 
Transfers from/(to) Public Trustee reserves  (2,242,836) 6,054,419 
Balance at end of period 11(b) 5,610,207 5,393,741 
   
Balance of equity at end of period  28,760,329 26,301,027 
The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanying notes. 
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$ $

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended 30 June 2013 
 
 

 Note 2013 2012
  

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES 

   

Receipts    
Fees raised from Estates and Trusts  11,394,695 9,603,474
Public Trustee 6% fee from Common 
Account  3,437,575 4,624,576

Management fee from Strategic Common 
Accounts  626,963 604,311

Receipts from Common Account Surplus 
Interest  8,651,000 5,789,762

Interest revenue  1,424,955 1,790,489
GST receipts on fees  4,359,402 1,828,279
Other revenue  34,838 25,818
Payments  
GST payments on purchases  (242,895) (1,452,486)
GST payments to taxation authority  (3,447,166) (966,849)
Net Cash provided by operating 
activities 14(b) 26,239,367 21,847,374

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

   
   
   
   
   
   
 Note 2013 2012 
  $ $ 

CASH FLOWS TO STATE GOVERNMENT   
Fees paid to Consolidated Account  (15,962,315) (14,826,798) 
Surplus Common Account Interest paid to 
Consolidated Account  (5,651,000) (3,267,572) 

Other payments to Consolidated Account 
from reserves  (2,720,013) (7,580,513) 

Net Cash provided to State Government  (24,333,328) (25,674,883) 
   

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and 
cash equivalents  1,906,039 (3,827,509) 

   
Cash and cash equivalents at the 
beginning of the period  27,727,658 31,555,167 

   
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 
THE END OF THE PERIOD 14(a) 29,633,697 27,727,658 

 
The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanying notes. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for FYE 30 June 2013 
 
1. Australian Accounting Standards 
General 
The Public Trustee’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2013 
have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. The 
term ‘Australian Accounting Standards’ refers to Standards and Interpretations 
issued by the Australian Accounting Standard Board (AASB). 
 
The Public Trustee has adopted any applicable new and revised Australian 
Accounting Standards from their operative dates. 
 
Early adoption of standards 
The Public Trustee cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard 
unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting 
Standards and Other Pronouncements. There has been no early adoption of 
Australian accounting Standards that have been issued or amended (but not 
operative) by the Public Trustee for the annual reporting period ended 30 
June 2013. 
 
2. Summary of significant accounting policies 
2 (a) (i) General statement 
The Public Trustee is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general 
purpose financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other 
authoritative pronouncements of the AASB as applied by the Treasurer's 
instructions. Several of these are modified by the Treasurer's instructions to 
vary application, disclosure, format and wording. 
 
The Financial Management Act and the Treasurer's Instructions impose 
legislative provisions that govern the preparation of financial statements and 
take precedence over Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, 
Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements 
of the AASB. 
 
Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial 
effect upon the reported results, details of that modification and the resulting 
financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
 
 

2 (a) (ii) Basis of preparation 
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting using the historical cost convention, except for land, buildings and 
infrastructure, which has been measured at fair value. 
 
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements 
have been consistently applied throughout all periods presented unless 
otherwise stated. 
 
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars ($), and all values 
are rounded to the nearest whole dollar, unless otherwise stated. 
 
Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies’ 
discloses judgements that have been made in the process of applying the 
Public Trustee’s accounting policies resulting in the most significant effect on 
amounts recognised in the financial statements.  
 
Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses key assumptions 
made concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the 
next financial year.  
 
2 (a) (iii) Reporting entity 
The Public Trustee is the reporting entity. 
 
2 (b) Investments (Common Account) 
Investments have been brought to account as follows: 
2 (b) (i)       Properties 
The Public Trustee Common Account owns an investment property, 
comprising of land and office buildings. At 30 June 2013 Public Trustee is the 
principal occupier of the property at 553 Hay Street. The property has been 
recorded at fair value - refer to note 25(g). Independent valuations of land and 
buildings are usually done annually by external parties to ensure that the 
carrying amount does not differ materially from the asset’s fair value at the 
end of the reporting period.   
 
2 (b) (ii) Cash and Cash Equivalent  
Government and other money market securities are recorded at cost, on a 
constant yield basis over the period to maturity. 
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For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent 
assets comprise cash on hand and short–term deposits that are readily 
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant 
risk of changes in value. 
 
2 (c) Trust accounts 
Section 39A of the Public Trustee Act 1941 establishes the Common Account, 
which is a continuation to the Common Account referred to in section 40(1) of 
this Act immediately before the day on which section 25 of the Public Trustee 
and Trustee Companies Legislation Amendment Act 2008 came into 
operation.  
 
Section 39B of the Public Trustee Act 1941 establishes the Strategic Common 
Accounts. The Public Trustee created four Strategic Common Accounts, these 
are also known as Public Trustee Investment Funds (PTIF). The Strategic 
Common Accounts are named Cash strategic investment account, 
Conservative strategic investment account, Growth strategic investment 
account; and Growth Plus strategic investment account (also known as Public 
Trustee Investment Fund – Cash, Public Trustee Investment Fund – 
Conservative, Public Trustee Investment Fund – Growth and Public Trustee 
Investment Fund – Growth Plus). The Strategic Common Accounts were 
established on 1 July 2009. 
 
Details of the Common Account are shown at note 25; details of the Strategic 
Common Accounts are shown at note 26. 
 
Details of receipts and payments in the individual estates and trusts are not 
shown in the financial statements. 
 
2 (d) Reserves 
On 1 July 2008, amendments to the Public Trustee Act 1941 and Public 
Trustee Regulations 1942 took effect.  Pursuant to section 6B of the Act and 
regulation 6 of the regulations, the Current Agreement 2012/13 prescribes the 
circumstances in which money may be transferred to or from a reserve fund 
and the uses of a reserve fund. The current agreement is a written agreement 
between the Minister and the Public Trustee for a 12 month period. 
 
Sections 8 to 12 of the Current Agreement 2012/13 prescribes the use of the 
Public Trustee Reserves and Common Account Reserves. 
 

The Public Trustee Indemnity Reserve has been established to meet any 
liability that the Public Trustee may incur, in a corporate capacity, at law to 
compensate a person for loss or damage that the person has or might have 
suffered. The reserve level is reviewed annually, is based on independent 
actuarial advice and represents a percentage of the total client assets and 
liabilities managed. (refer note 11(a)(i)) 
  
The Business Development Reserve has been established to meet future 
capital requirements (refer note 11(a)(ii)). 
 
These reserves are in contrast to the Common Account Investment Reserve, 
which is used primarily for the operations of the Common Account, such as to 
stabilise interest paid to estates, meet losses on investments and maintain 
Common Account assets (refer note 25(i)(i)). 
 
2 (e) Reporting of assets and liabilities used by the Public Trustee 
The Department of the Attorney General provides the Public Trustee with 
resources in the form of staff, equipment and other operating expenses.  The 
assets and liabilities relating to these provided resources are reported in the 
Department of the Attorney General’s Financial Statements (refer note 7 & 
21). 
 
2 (f) Foreign currency translation 
Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are translated at the rates in 
existence at the dates of the transactions.  Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rate of exchange 
current at the end of the reporting period.  
 
2 (g) Comparative figures 
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable 
with the figures presented in the current financial year. 
 
2 (h) Fair value 
The fair value of the financial instruments in the Common Account, such as 
monetary financial assets and liabilities not traded in an organised financial 
market, is initially measured at cost. Financial liabilities include accrued fees 
payable to the Consolidated Account. The carrying value approximates fair 
value. 
 

previous              contents                  next                                                                                                                                             Public Trustee Annual Report 2012/13            38 



 Financial Statements 

previous              contents                  next                                                                                                                                             Public Trustee Annual Report 2012/13            39 

 
2 (i) Revenue recognition 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. 
Revenue is recognised for business activities as follows: 
2 (i) (i) Fees raised from Estates and Trusts are recognised when the 

services are rendered to the clients, and are debited to the clients 
account at the end of each month.  There are no receivables in 
relation to fees at month end. 

2 (i) (ii) Public Trustee 6% fee from the Common Account is recognised at 
the end of each month, with a final adjustment at year-end. 

2 (i) (iii) Management Fees from Strategic Common Accounts are 
recognised monthly as they accrue. 

2 (i) (iv) Receipts from Common Account surplus interest are recognised 
as the interest accrues. 

2 (i) (v) Receipts from Common Account Reserves are recognised when 
accrued. 

2 (i) (vi) Interest revenue is recognised as it accrues, using the effective 
interest rate method. 

2 (i) (vii) All other revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of 
consideration received or receivable. 

 
2 (j) Services received free of charge or for a nominal cost 
Services received free of charge or for a nominal cost that can be reliably 
measured are recognised as income and as assets or expenses as 
appropriate, at fair value. Where the resources represent a service that the 
authority would otherwise pay for, a corresponding expense is recognised. 
Receipts of assets are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position.  
 
Assets or services received from other State Government agencies are 
separately disclosed under Income from State Government in the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income. 
 
2 (k) Goods and Services Tax 
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods 
and services tax (GST), except where the amount of GST incurred is not 
recoverable from the Australian Tax Office (ATO). In these circumstances the 
GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of 
an item of the expense. 
 
Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. 

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included 
as a current asset or liability in the statement of financial position. 
 
2 (l) Receivables 
Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an 
allowance for any uncollectible amounts (i.e. impairment). The collectability of 
receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as 
uncollectible are written-off against the allowance account.  The allowance for 
uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective 
evidence that the Public Trustee will not be able to collect the debts.  The 
carrying amount is equivalent to fair value as they are generally settled within 
30 days. 
 
2 (m) Payables 
Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the Public Trustee 
becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets 
or services at fair value, as they are generally settled within 30 days.  
 
2 (n) Operating Leases 
Operating leases are expensed on a straight line basis over the lease term as 
this represents the pattern of benefits derived from the leased properties. 
 
2(o) Impairment of assets 
2(o) (i) Non-current assets 
Non-current Assets are tested for any indication of impairment at the end of 
each reporting period.  Where there is an indication of impairment, the 
recoverable amount is estimated.  Where the recoverable amount is less than 
the carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to 
the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised.  As the Public 
Trustee is a not-for-profit entity, unless an asset has been identified as a 
surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value 
less cost to sell and the depreciated replacement cost. 
 
The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s 
depreciation is materially understated, where the replacement cost is falling or 
where there is a significant change in useful life.  Each relevant class of 
assets is reviewed annually to verify that the recorded value reflects the level 
of consumption or expiration of asset’s future economic benefits and to 
evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement costs. 
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2(o) (ii) Financial assets 
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) 
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the assets is 
reduced either directly or through use of an allowance account.  The amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. 
 
2(p) Disclosure of changes to accounting policy and estimates 
Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard 
The Public Trustee has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012 that impacted 
on the Public Trustee: 
Standard Title 

AASB 2011-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income [AASB 1, 5, 7, 101, 112, 120, 121, 132, 
133, 134, 1039 & 1049] 
This Standard requires to group items presented in other comprehensive income on the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit 
or loss subsequently (reclassification adjustments).  There is no financial impact. 

 
Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative 
The Public Trustee cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards 
and Other Pronouncements. Consequently, the Public Trustee has not applied early any of the following Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued that 
may impact the Public Trustee. Where applicable, the Public Trustee plans to apply these Australian Accounting Standards from their application date. 

Standard Title 

Operative 
for reporting 

periods 
beginning 
on/after 

AASB 9 Financial Instruments 

This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, introducing a number of changes to 
accounting treatments. 

AASB 2012-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Mandatory Effective Date of AASB 9 and Transition Disclosures 
amended the mandatory application date of this Standard to 1 January 2015.  The Public Trustee has not yet determined the 
application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

 

1 Jan 2015 

AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 

This Standard supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and Int 112 Consolidation – Special 
Purpose Entities, introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments. 

Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred by one year for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards – Transition Guidance and Other Amendments.  The Public Trustee has not yet determined the 
application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

 

1 Jan 2014 
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AASB 11 Joint Arrangements 

This Standard supersedes AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures, introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments. 

Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred by one year for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10.  The Public Trustee 
has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

 

1 Jan 2014 

AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 

This Standard supersedes disclosure requirements under AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and 
AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures. 

Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred by one year for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10.  The Public Trustee 
has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

 

1 Jan 2014 

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement 

This Standard defines fair value, sets out a framework for measuring fair value and requires additional disclosures about fair value 
measurements.  There is no financial impact. 

 

1 Jan 2013 

AASB 119 Employee Benefits 

This Standard supersedes AASB 119 (October 2010), making changes to the recognition, presentation and disclosure 
requirements. 

The Public Trustee does not have any defined benefit plans, and therefore the financial impact will be limited to the effect of 
discounting annual leave and long service leave liabilities that were previously measured at the undiscounted amounts. 

 

1 Jan 2013 

AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements 

This Standard supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, introducing a number of changes to 
accounting treatments. 

Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred by one year for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10.  The Public Trustee 
has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

 

1 Jan 2014 

AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 

This Standard supersedes AASB 128 Investments in Associates, introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments. 

Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred by one year for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10.  The Public Trustee 
has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

 

1 Jan 2014 

AASB 1053 Application of Tiers of Australian Accounting Standards 

This Standard establishes a differential financial reporting framework consisting of two tiers of reporting requirements for preparing 
general purpose financial statements.  There is no financial impact. 

 

1 Jul 2013 
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AASB 1055 Budgetary Reporting 

This Standard specifies the nature of budgetary disclosures, the circumstances in which they are to be included in the general 
purpose financial statements of 
not-for-profit entities within the GGS.  The Public Trustee will be required to disclose additional budgetary information and  
explanations of major variances between actual and budgeted amounts, though there is no financial impact. 

 

1 Jul 2014 

AASB 2010-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Reduced Disclosure Requirements [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 8, 101, 102, 
107, 108, 110, 111, 112, 116, 117, 119, 121, 123, 124, 127, 128, 131, 133, 134, 136, 137, 138, 140, 141, 1050 & 1052 and Int 2, 4, 
5, 15, 17, 127, 129 & 1052] 

This Standard makes amendments to Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations to introduce reduced disclosure 
requirements for certain types of entities.  There is no financial impact. 

 

1 Jul 2013 

AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 
118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127] 

This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a result of 
issuing AASB 9 in December 2010. 

AASB 2012-6 amended the mandatory application date of this Standard to 1 January 2015.  The Public Trustee has not yet 
determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

 

1 Jan 2015 

AASB 2011-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Trans-Tasman Convergence Project – Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements [AASB 101 & 1054] 

This Standard removes disclosure requirements from other Standards and incorporates them in a single Standard to achieve 
convergence between Australian and New Zealand Accounting Standards for reduced disclosure reporting.  There is no financial 
impact. 

 

1 Jul 2013 

AASB 2011-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Extending Relief from Consolidation, the Equity Method and Proportionate 
Consolidation – Reduced Disclosure Requirements [AASB 127, 128 & 131] 

This Standard extends the relief from consolidation, the equity method and proportionate consolidation by removing the requirement 
for the consolidated financial statements prepared by the ultimate or any intermediate parent entity to be IFRS compliant, provided 
that the parent entity, investor or venturer and the ultimate or intermediate parent entity comply with Australian Accounting 
Standards or Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements.  There is no financial impact. 

 

1 Jul 2013 

AASB 2011-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and Joint Arrangements Standards [AASB 1, 2, 3, 
5, 7, 101, 107, 112, 118, 121, 124, 132, 133, 136, 138, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 5, 9, 16 & 17] 

This Standard gives effect to consequential changes arising from the issuance of AASB 10, AASB 11, AASB 127 Separate 
Financial Statements and AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.  For not-for-profit entities it applies to annual 
reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2014.  The Public Trustee has not yet determined the application or the potential 
impact of the Standard. 

 

1 Jan 2014 
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AASB 2012-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Annual Improvements 2009-11 Cycle [AASB 1, 101, 116, 132 & 134 
and Int 2] 

This Standard makes amendments to the Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a consequence of the annual 
improvements process.  There is no financial impact. 

 

1 Jan 2013 

AASB 2012-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Mandatory Effective Date of AASB 9 and Transition Disclosures [AASB 9, 2009-
11, 2010-7, 2011-7 & 2011-8] 

This Standard amends the mandatory effective date of AASB 9 Financial Instruments to 1 January 2015.  Further amendments are 
also made to consequential amendments arising from AASB 9 that will now apply from 1 January 2015 and to consequential 
amendments arising out of the Standards that will still apply from 1 January 2013.  There is no financial impact. 

 

1 Jan 2013 

AASB 2012-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Reduced Disclosure Requirements [AASB 7, 12, 101 & 127] 

This Standard adds to or amends the Australian Accounting Standards to provide further information regarding the differential 
reporting framework and the two tiers of reporting requirements for preparing general financial statement.  There is no financial 
impact. 

 

1 Jul 2013 

AASB 2012-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Transition Guidance and Other Amendments [AASB 1, 5, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12, 13, 
101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 119, 127, 128, 132, 133, 134, 137, 1023, 1038, 1039, 1049, & 2011-7 and Int 12] 

This Standard makes amendments to AASB 10 and related Standards to revise the transition guidance relevant to the initial 
application of those Standards, and to clarify the circumstances in which adjustments to an entity’s previous accounting for its 
involvement with other entities are required and the timing of such adjustments. 

The Standard was issued in December 2012.  The Public Trustee has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of 
the Standard. 

 

1 Jan 2013 

AASB 2012-11 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Other Amendments [AASB 1, 2, 8, 10, 
107, 128, 133, 134 & 2011-4] 

This Standard makes various editorial corrections to Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements (Tier 2).  
These corrections ensure that the Standards reflect decisions of the AASB regarding the Tier 2 requirements. 

This Standard also extends the relief from consolidation and the equity method (in the new Consolidation and Joint Arrangements 
Standards) to entities complying with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements.  There is no financial 
impact. 

 

1 Jul 2013 
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3. Judgements made by management in applying accounting 
policies 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make 
judgements about the application of accounting policies that have a significant 
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. The Public 
Trustee evaluates these judgements regularly. 
 
Operating lease commitments  
The Public Trustee has entered into an operating lease arrangement with the 
Common Account for office accommodation. Due to limitations of the Public 
Trustee Act 1941, the lease agreement could not be signed as per State 
Office Solicitor’s advice. It has been determined that the Public Trustee will 
occupy specified areas of the building in exchange for a monthly charge, over 
10 years ending in March 2021, and the Common Account will retain all the 
risks and rewards incidental to ownership. Accordingly, this arrangement has 
been classified as operating lease.  
 
4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
There have been no key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting 
date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 
 
5. Events occurring after the balance date 
There were no events occurring after balance date that will materially impact 
the financial statements. 
 
6. Write offs 
The amount of $275,654 (2012- $479,710) represents losses incurred during 
the administration of estates and trusts, which have been written off in 
accordance with Section 48 of the Financial Management Act 2006. 
 
 2013 2012
 $ $

Write Offs 275,654 479,710
 
7. Income from State Government 

Services received free of charge from the Department of the 
Attorney General 

 

The operational costs of the Public Trustee are funded by the Department of 
the Attorney General pursuant to a net appropriation determination by the 
Treasurer. 
 
A breakdown of the resources provided free of charge to the Public Trustee is 
as follows: 
 
 2013 2012 
Operating Expenses $ $ 
Employee benefits expense  
Salaries 12,677,643 12,306,674 
Superannuation and pension 1,173,427 1,115,357 
 13,851,070 13,422,031 
Depreciation  1,462,684 1,030,427 
Administration expenses 3,472,428 3,872,723 
Accommodation expenses 2,445,956 2,244,939 
Corporate service expenses 2,366,750 1,989,581 
Total operating expenses  23,598,888 22,559,701 
  
Operating Income   
Recoups and other revenue from the DotAG 257,931 102,996 
Corporate revenue allocation from the DotAG 186,042 639,073 
Resources received free of charge from the DotAG 23,146,496 21,817,632 
Total operating income 23,590,469 22,559,701 
 
8. Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets 
 2013 2012 
Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets  $ $ 
Office Equipment  - - 
Costs of disposal of non-current assets   
Office equipment  (1,159) - 
Net gain/(loss) (1,159) - 
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9. Fees paid to Consolidated Account 
Pursuant to section 6B(2)(b) of the Public Trustee Act 1941 and regulation 
6(b) of the Public Trustee Regulations 1942, from 1 July 2008 the Current 
Agreement sets out the proportion of the fees received by the Public Trustee 
to be credited to the Consolidated Account. The Current Agreement 2012/13 
determines that the Public Trustee is to transfer at least $12,483,000 (2012 
$13,764,000) in fees to the Consolidated Account if the fees collected are in 
excess of $12,483,000. If the fees collected are below this figure then all fees 
collected shall be paid to the Consolidated Account, via the Department of the 
Attorney General’s net appropriation determination. 

 2013 2012
 $ $

Fees paid to Consolidated Account  14,841,745 15,376,869
 
10. Interest and Other Revenue Paid to the Consolidated Account 
10(a) Surplus Common Account Interest paid to Consolidated Account 
Following the payment of interest to trusts, estates and to the Public Trustee 
(includes Public Trustee 6% fee), any surplus earnings are deemed to be 
Surplus Common Account Interest. Section 39A (8) of the Public Trustee Act 
1941 allows the Public Trustee to credit this Surplus Common Account 
Interest to a reserve fund.  The Current Agreement 2012/13 Section 10.2 
determines that the Public Trustee shall credit to the Business Development 
Reserve, at least $5,500,000 (2012 $3,490,000) of the balance of interest 
received. Section 10.3 of the Current Agreement prescribes this amount shall 
be paid from the Business Development Reserve to the Consolidated 
Account, via the Department of the Attorney General’s net appropriation 
determination. 
 2013 2012
 $ $
Surplus Common Account Interest paid to 
Consolidated Account 5,651,000 3,789,762

 
10(b) Other payments to Consolidated Account from reserves 
These payments relate to outgoings incurred by the Department of Attorney 
General, on behalf of the Public Trustee, to indemnify certain clients for losses 
judged to be the responsibility of the Public Trustee, and for the Public 
Trustee’s capital works programs.  The payments were funded via transfers 
from the Public Trustee’s Indemnity and Business Development Reserves as 
follows: 

 2013 2012 
 $ $ 
Transfers from the Indemnity Reserve 12,240 45,028 
Transfers from the Business Development Reserve 2,707,773 7,535,485 
Other payments to Consolidated Account from 
reserves 2,720,013 7,580,513 

 
11 Equity 
Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of the Public Trustee. 
11(a) Reserves 
Pursuant to section 6B of the Public Trustee Act 1941 and Regulation 6 of the 
Public Trustee Regulation 1942, the Current Agreement 2012/13 prescribes 
the circumstances in which money may be transferred to or from a reserve 
fund and the uses of a reserve fund. The current agreement is a written 
agreement between the Minister and the Public Trustee for a 12-month 
period. 
Details of the Reserves are as follows: 
 Note 2013 2012 
  $ $ 
Total Reserves   
Balance at start of year  20,907,286 26,961,705 
ADD Transfer to Reserves  13,618,734 6,365,060 
LESS Transfer from Reserves  (11,375,898) (12,419,479) 
Balance at end of year  23,150,122 20,907,286 
   
Represented by:   
Indemnity Reserve   
Balance at start of year  9,353,013 9,296,648 
ADD Transfer to Reserves  - 575,298 
LESS Transfer from Reserves  (3,022,155) (518,933) 
Balance at end of year 11(a)(i) 6,330,858 9,353,013 
   
Business Development Reserve   
Balance at start of year  11,554,273 17,665,057 
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 Note 2013 2012
  $ $
ADD Transfer to Reserves  13,618,734 5,789,762
LESS Transfer from Reserves  (8,353,743) (11,900,546)
Balance at end of year 11(a)(ii) 16,819,264 11,554,273
  
Total Balance of Reserves at end of 
Year  23,150,122 20,907,286

 
11 (a) (i)  Indemnity Reserve 
If the Public Trustee, in its corporate capacity, is or might be liable at law to 
compensate a person for loss or damage that the person has or might have 
suffered, then the Public Trustee may, apply moneys from the Indemnity 
Reserve, to pay to investigate, defend, settle and/or compromise the matter; 
or to pay for any loss or damage that the person has or might have suffered, 
including, but not limited to, costs and disbursements, as specified in section 
9.3 of the Current Agreement 2012/13. The reserve level is reviewed annually, 
is based on independent actuarial advice and represents a percentage of the 
total client assets and liabilities managed.  
  
11 (a) (ii) Business Development Reserve 
The uses of the Business Development Reserve are specified in section 10.4 
of the Current Agreement 2012/13 and include, payment of capital costs, 
meeting shortfalls in revenue paid to the consolidated account, costs 
associated with the coming into operation of the Public Trustee and Trustee 
Companies Legislation Amendment Act 2008. 
 
11 (b) Retained Earnings 
 2013 2012
 $ $
Balance at start of year 5,393,741 3,639,535
Surplus/(Deficit) 2,459,302 (4,300,213)
Transfer to reserves (13,618,734) (6,365,060)
Transfer from reserves 11,375,898 12,419,479
Balance at end of year 5,610,207 5,393,741
 
 

12 Accrued Fees Payable to Consolidated Account 
 2013 2012 
 $ $ 
Fees payables to Consolidated Account 585,489 1,183,869 
Common Account Surplus payable to the 
Consolidated Account 

- 522,190 

Accrued Fees payable to Consolidated Account 585,489 1,706,059 
 
13 Receivables 
 2013 2012 
Current  $ $ 
Receivables  152,669 53,473 
Allowances for impairment of receivables (9,577) - 
GST receivable  - 241,196 
Total current receivables 143,092 294,669 
 
Reconciliation of changes in the allowances for 
impairment of receivables 
 2013 2012 
 $ $

- -

 
Balance at start of period  
Doubtful debts expense  9,577 - 
Balance at end of period 9,577 - 
 
14 Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows 
14(a) Reconciliation of cash 
All Public Trustee funds held within the Public Trustee Common Account are 
available at call.  Cash at the end of the financial year, as shown in the 
Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the Statement of 
Financial Position as follows: 

2013 2012 
$ $ 

Cash - Investment in Common Account 29,633,697 27,727,658 
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14(b) Reconciliation of net cost of service before Income from State 
Government to net cash flows provided by operating activities: 

 2013 2012
 $ $
Net Cost of Service before Income from 
State Government (21,131,167) (26,859,914)

 
Non-cash items: 
Employee benefits expense  13,851,070 13,422,031
Depreciation 1,462,684 1,030,427
Administration expenses 3,472,428 3,872,723
Accommodation expenses 2,445,956 2,244,939
Corporate service expenses 2,366,750 1,989,581
Loss on disposal of non-current assets 1,159 -
Payments: 
Fees paid to Consolidated Account 14,841,745 15,376,869
Surplus Common Account Interest paid to 
Consolidated Account 5,651,000 3,789,762

Other payments to Consolidated Account from 
reserves  2,720,013 7,580,513

Change in Assets and Liabilities 
(Increase)/decrease in receivables (99,197) (253,479)
Increase/(decrease) in tax liabilities 669,341 (343,889)
Increase/(decrease) in payables (12,415) (2,189)
Net cash provided by operating activities 26,239,367 21,847,374
 
15. Remuneration of members of the accountable authority 

and senior officers 
15(a) Remuneration of members of the accountable authority 
The number of members of the Accountable Authority, whose total of fees, 
salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the 
financial year, fall within the following bands is: 
 
 
 

               $ 2013 2012 
70,000 – 80,000 - 1

1 1
- -
$ $

 
180,001 – 190,000  
370,001 – 380,000  
  
Base remuneration and superannuation  $228,048 $247,090 
Annual leave and long service leave accruals  ($66,409) $9,717 
Other benefits $18,656 $5,671 
Total remuneration of members of the accountable 
authority: $180,295 $262,478 

 
The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the 
Public Trustee in respect of members of the accountable authority. No 
members of the accountable authority are members of the Pension Scheme. 
 
15(b) Remuneration of senior officers  
The number of senior officers, other than senior officers reported as members 
of the Accountable Authority, whose total fees, salaries, superannuation, non-
monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the 
following bands is: 
               $ 2013 2012 
120,001  -  130,000 1 -

1 -
1 1
- 2
2 1
- 1
$ $

 
130,001  -  140,000  
140,001  -  150,000  
160,001  -  170,000  
170,001  -  180,000  
230,001 – 240,000  
  
Base remuneration and superannuation  $755,829 $729,920 
Annual leave and long service leave accruals  $3,094 $160,308 
Other benefits $6,187 $437 
Total remuneration of senior officers: $765,110 $890,665 
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The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the 
Public Trustee in respect of senior officers other than senior officers reported 
as members of the accountable authority.  No senior officers are members of 
the Pension Scheme. 
 
16. Remuneration of auditor 
Remuneration payable to the Auditor General in respect to the audit for the 
current financial year is as follows: 
 2013

$
2012

$
Auditing the accounts, financial statements and 
performance indicators 67,500 65,100

 
17. Contingent liabilities 
In addition to the liabilities included in the financial statements, there are the 
following contingent liabilities: 
 
Litigation in progress 
The Public Trustee has 4 matters (20 in 2012) where litigation against the 
Public Trustee may result or have been started. They involve potential claims 
for damages to the value of $0.2 million ($1.8milliion in 2012) inclusive of 
court costs. These claims however, have not been finalised and it is likely that 
there will not be any liability at all. As a result no liability has been recognised 
in the Financial Statements at 30 June 2013. 
 
Contaminated sites 
Under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003, the Public Trustee is required to 
report known and suspected contaminated sites to the Department of 
Environment and Conservation (DEC). In accordance with the Act, DEC 
classifies these sites on the basis of the risk to human health, the environment 
and environmental values. Where sites are classified as contaminated – 
remediation required or possibly contaminated – investigation required, the 
Public Trustee may have a liability in respect of investigation or remediation 
expenses. 
 
During the year the Public Trustee reported no suspected contaminated sites 
to DEC.  
 
18. Commitments 
The Public Trustee has entered into a property lease for six floors in 553 Hay 
street building, which is a non-cancellable lease with a 10 year term starting 

from March 2011, with rent payable monthly in advance. Rent provision within 
the lease agreement require that the minimum lease payments shall be 
increased by 4% per annum. There is no option to extend the lease after the 
end of the term. 
 

Property Lease Commitments 2013
$

2012 
$ 

Commitments in relation to leases 
contracted for at the end of the reporting 
period but not recognised in the financial 
statements are payable as follows: 

 

Within 1 year 2,053,119 1,974,153 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 9,067,237 8,718,497 
Later than 5 years 6,987,465 9,389,324 
 18,107,821 20,081,974 
Representing :  
Non-cancellable operating leases 18,107,821 20,081,974 
 18,107,821 20,081,974 
 
19. Impairment of assets 
There were no indications of impairment to assets at 30 June 2013.The Public 
Trustee held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life 
during the reporting period. At the end of the reporting period there were no 
intangible assets not yet available for use. 
 
There are no surplus assets held at 30 June 2013. 
 
20. Financial instruments 
 
20(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies 
Financial instruments held by the Public Trustee are cash and cash 
equivalents, receivables and payables.  The Public Trustee has limited 
exposure to financial risks. 
 
The Public Trustee invests exclusively in the Common Account. The 
investments of the Common Account are in compliance with s39A Public 
Trustee and Trustee Companies Legislation Amendment Act 2008. 
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The Public Trustee’s overall risk management program focuses on managing 
the risks identified below. 
 
Credit risk  
Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Public Trustee’s 
receivables defaulting on their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss 
to the Public Trustee. 
 
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period in 
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the gross carrying 
amount of those assets inclusive of any allowance for impairment as shown in 
the table at note 20(c) ‘Financial instruments disclosure’ and note 13 
‘Receivables’. 
 
Credit risk associated with the Public Trustee’s financial assets is minimal 
because the State Government guarantees all financial assets of the Common 
Account in terms of s42 of the Public Trustee Act 1941. The Public Trustee 
monitors receivable balances on an ongoing basis with the result that the 
exposure to bad debts is minimal. At the end of the reporting period there 
were no significant concentrations of credit risk. 
 
The only investment is the investment in the Common Account, which 
includes one building and cash term deposits in banks with the lowest credit 
rating being A2. Term deposits are not considered a credit risk. There has 
been no change from the previous period in respect of exposure to credit risk. 
 
Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk arises when the Public Trustee is unable to meet its financial 
obligations as they fall due. The Public Trustee is exposed to liquidity risk 
through its trading in the normal course of business. 
 
The Public Trustee has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows 
including the drawing down of appropriations by monitoring forecast cash 
flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet commitments. 
 
The building at 553 Hay Street has been an asset of the Common Account 
since August 2008. The majority of the Common Account portfolio is in liquid 
form with an average daily balance of $15 million held in a 24 hour at call 
account with Western Australian Treasury Corporation (WATC) and an 
average daily balance of $1,183 million in term deposits with banks. The 
liquidity is monitored by the Financial Analyst, the Manager Finance and the 

Director Business Services. There has been no change from the previous 
period in respect of exposure to liquidity risk. 
 
Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange 
rates and interest rates will affect the Public Trustee’s income or the value of 
its holdings of financial instruments. The Public Trustee does not trade in 
foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other price risks.   
 
The Public Trustee’s exposure to market risk through changes in interest rates 
is limited to cash which is invested in the Common Account.  Common 
Account investments are authorised by s39 Public Trustee Act 1941; 
exposure to interest rate risk is limited to short term deposits and cash.  There 
has been no change from the previous period in respect of exposure to 
market risk. 
 
The Public Trustee has guidelines for limiting the exposure to any one level of 
bank rating, A1+ is maximum 70% of total term deposits and A1 and A2 are 
maximum 40%. This ensures that the risk is spread and deposits are not 
placed on seeking the highest rate available on the day of maturity alone but 
taking into account the risk involved. The return is measured against a 
number of indicators including the UBS 30 day bank bill rate and the interest 
paid by WATC. 
 
20(b) Categories of financial instruments 
The carrying amount of each of the following categories of financial assets 
and financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows: 

2013
$

2012 
$ 

Financial Assets   
Cash - Investment in Common Account 29,633,697 27,727,658 
Receivables 143,092 53,473 
Financial Liabilities  
Accrued fees payable to Consolidated Account 585,489 1,706,059 
Payables 2,828 15,243 
 
The items above exclude GST amounts payable and/or receivable from the 
ATO. 
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20(c) Financial instrument disclosures 
Credit risk 
The State Government guarantees all financial assets of the Public Trustee Common Account and therefore no credit risk exists in respect of those amounts. The 
Public Trustee has no material exposure to liquidity risk. 
 
The Public Trustee’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below. The table is 
based on information provided to senior management of the Public Trustee. 
 
The Public Trustee does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancement relating to the financial assets it holds. 
 
The Public Trustee does not hold any financial assets that have had to have their terms renegotiated that would have otherwise resulted in them being past due or 
impaired. 
 

 Past due but not impaired  

 
Carrying 
amount

Not past due 
and not 

impaired 
Up to 1 
month 1-3 months

3 months to 1 
year 1-5 years 

More then 5 
years

Impaired 
financial 

assets 
 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 

2013  

Financial Assets  
Cash - Investment in Common 
Account 29,633 29,633 - - - - - - 

Receivables10 143 87 4 3               24 25 - - 

 29,776 29,720 4 3 24 25 - - 

2012  

Financial Assets  
Cash - Investment in Common 
Account 27,728 27,728 - - - - - - 

Receivables 53 53 - - - - - - 

 27,781 27,781 - - - - - - 

 
 
 
 

                                                 
10 Invoicing and revenue collection systems for Legal, Wills and Accounts Examination areas have been reviewed and modified in 2013. Manual review of client files revealed several 
long-term outstanding debts, which were not reported previously. Policies and procedures have been amended to ensure efficient and effective monitoring, collecting and reporting of 
outstanding debts. 
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Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure 
The following table details the Public Trustee’s interest and contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities. The maturity analysis section 
includes interest and principal cash flows. The interest rate exposure section analyses only the carrying amounts of each item. 
 
Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities 
  Interest rate exposure Maturity dates 
 Weighted 

average 
effective 

interest rate 

Carrying 
amount 

Fixed 
Interest 

rate 

Variable 
Interest 

Rate 

Non-interest 
bearing 

Nominal 
amount 

Up to 1 
month 

1-3 
months 

3 months 
to 1 year

1-5 years More than 5 
years 

 % $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 

2013   

Financial Assets  
Cash – 
Investment in 
Common 
account 

5.55% 29,633 - 29,633 - 29,633 - - - - 29,633 

Receivables   143 - - 143 143 143 - - - - 
  29,776 - 29,633 143 29,776 143 - - - 29,633 
Financial Liabilities  
Payable to 
Consolidated 
account 

 585 - - - 585 585 - - - - 

Payables   3 - - 3 3 3 - - - - 
  588 - - 588 588 588 - - - - 
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  Interest rate exposure Maturity dates 
 Weighted 

average 
effective 

interest rate 

Carrying 
amount 

Fixed 
Interest 

rate 

Variable 
Interest 

Rate 

Non-interest 
bearing 

Nominal 
amount 

Up to 1 
month 

1-3 
months 

3 months 
to 1 year

1-5 years More than 5 
years 

 % $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 

2012   

Financial Assets  
Cash – 
Investment in 
Common 
account 

6.21% 27,728 - 27,728 - 27,728 - - - - 27,728 

Receivables  53 - - 53 53 53 - - - - 
  27,781 - 27,728 53 27,781 53 - - - 27,728 
Financial Liabilities  
Payable to 
Consolidated 
account 

 1,706 - - 1,706 1,706 1,706 - - - - 

Payables  15 - - 15 15 15 - - - - 
  1,721 - - 1,721- 1,721 1,721 - - - - 
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis 
The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the Public Trustee’s financial assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period on the 
surplus for the period and equity for a 1% (100 basis points) change in interest rates.  A 1% movement is considered to be reasonably possible taking into account 
past performance, economic forecasts and management’s knowledge and experience of financial markets.  It is assumed that the change in interest rate is held 
constant throughout the reporting period.   
 
 -100 Basis Points (-1%) +100 Basis Points (+1%) 
 Carrying amount Surplus Equity Surplus Equity 

 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 
2013   
Financial Assets   
Cash - Investment in Common Account 29,633 (296) (296) 296 296 
   
2012   
Financial Assets   
Cash - Investment in Common Account 27,728 (277) (277) 277 277 
 
 
Fair values 
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at amounts that 
represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes. 
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21. Related bodies 
The Public Trustee is a Statutory Authority.  However, its operational 
expenses are appropriated by Parliament through the Department of the 
Attorney General. Financial assistance was provided during the year – refer 
note 7 “Income from State Government”. Full details on the financial 
operations of the Public Trustee are detailed in the Department of the Attorney 
General’s Annual Report. 
 
22. Indian Ocean Territories - Christmas Island and Cocos (Keeling) 

Island 
An agreement negotiated between the Commonwealth and the State 
Government, enables trustee services to be provided to both communities on 
a cost recovery basis. 
 
The Commonwealth Government meets any shortfall between the Public 
Trustee normal fees charged for trustee services and the hourly rates.  There 
were no visits to the islands during the financial year. 
 
Statement of Receipts and Expenditure for the period ended 30 June 2013: 
 2013 2012
 $ $

- -

Opening balance 3,668 3,823
Receipts 
Expenditure (161) (155)
Closing balance 3,507 3,668
 
23. Explanatory statement 
 
23(a) Significant variations between current and prior year actual 
Details and reasons for significant variations between actual results with the 
corresponding items of the preceding year are detailed below. Significant 
variations are considered to be those greater than 10% and $100,000. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 2013 2012 Variance Variance 

 $ $ $ 
+ / (-) 

% 
+ / (-) 

Expenses  
Write offs 275,654 479,710 (204,056) (43%) 
Depreciation 1,462,684 1,030,427 432,257 42% 
Administration expenses 3,472,428 3,872,723 (400,295) (10%) 
Corporate service expenses 2,366,750 1,989,581 377,169 19% 
Surplus Common Account 
Interest paid to Consolidated 
Account 

5,651,000 3,789,762 1,861,238 49% 

Other payments to 
Consolidated Account from 
reserves 

2,720,013 7,580,513 (4,860,500) (64%) 

  
Income   
Fees and charges 11,770,109 10,091,684 1,678,425 17% 
Public Trustee 6% fee from 
Common Account 3,437,575 4,624,576 (1,187,001) (26%) 

Receipts from Common 
Account Surplus Interest 8,651,000 5,789,762 2,861,238 49% 

Interest revenue 1,424,955 1,790,486 (365,531) (20%) 
   
Income from State 
Government    

Recoups and other revenue 
from the Department of the 
Attorney General 

257,931 102,996 154,935 150% 

Corporate revenue allocation 
from the Department of the 
Attorney General 

186,042 639,073 (453,031) (71%) 
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Write offs 
The write off in 2012 includes a large settlement of $450,000 that had 
previously been recognised as a contingent liability.  
 
Depreciation 
Leasehold improvements have been added to the list of depreciable assets 
after the Public Trustee moved into newly renovated premises at 553 Hay 
Street. 2013 is the first year when these newly added assets have been 
depreciated for the full year.  
 
Administration expense 
Last year administration expense was inflated by relocation costs such as the 
telephone system upgrade and various low value assets. Since the relocation 
has been completed, the administration expense has reduced. 
 
Corporate service expenses 
The increase in corporate services costs allocated by the Department of the 
Attorney General mainly relates to higher than previous year computing and 
communications licence costs. 
 
Surplus Common Account Interest paid to Consolidated Account 
Greater than prior year Surplus Common Account interest was budgeted and 
paid to the Consolidated Account in line with the self-funding initiative.  
 
Other payments to Consolidated Account from reserves 
2012 Other payments to Consolidated Account includes $5 million of capital 
expenditure paid to DOTAG as per Annual Agreement 2012. With the office 
relocation being successfully completed, no significant capital expenditure 
payments were made in accordance with the Annual Agreement 2013.  
 
Fees and charges 
2013 higher fees collection is due to several factors, such as annual CPI 
indexation of fees and charges, improved control over timely collection of fees 
and charges and partial clearing of work backlogs, especially in the Wills and 
Accounts Examination areas.  
 
Public Trustee 6% fee from Common Account 
Due to decline in interest rates, the Common Account earnings reduced by 
26%. Consequently the Public Trustee commission on the Common Account 
income also reduced as a result.  
 

Receipts from Common Account Surplus Interest 
$2.8 million increase from last year is largely due to a revaluation increase in 
Common Account investment property.  
 
Interest revenue 
Decline in interest earned on PT investment in the Common Account is due to 
reduced average value of reserves comparing with previous year and a lower 
earning rate.  
 
Recoups and other revenue from the Department of the Attorney 
General 
The increase in recoups and other revenue is due to several salary recoups 
from pervious years being paid to the Consolidated account in 2013.  
 
Corporate revenue allocation from the Department of the Attorney 
General 
The decrease in corporate services revenue allocated by the Department of 
the Attorney General is mainly due to lower than expected recoups and 
miscellaneous revenue.  
 
23(b) Significant variations between estimated and actual results 
for the financial year 
 
Details and reasons for significant variations between estimates and actual 
results are detailed below. Significant variations are considered to be those 
greater than 10% of estimates and $100,000. 
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 2013 
Estimate 

2013 
Actual Variation Variation

 $ $ $
+ / (-)

%
+ / (-)

Expenses  
Write offs 20,000 275,654 255,654 1,278%
Administration expenses 1,400,000 3,472,428 2,072,428 148%
Accommodation expenses 3,545,000 2,445,956 (1,099,044) (31%)
Fees paid to Consolidated 
Account 12,483,000 14,841,745 2,358,745 19%

     
Income     
Fees and charges 10,675,000 11,770,109 1,095,109 10%
Public Trustee’s 6% fee from 
Common Account 1,260,000 3,437,575 2,177,575 173%

Receipts from Common 
Account Surplus Interest 5,500,000 8,651,000 3,151,000 57%

Interest revenue 1,800,000 1,424,955 (375,045) (21%)
Recoups and other revenue 
from Department of the 
Attorney General 

155,000 257,931 102,931 66%

 
Write offs 
The write off includes several small settlements paid from the Indemnity 
Reserve. As these settlements were contingent of factors outside the Public 
Trustee control, they were not included in the budget.  
 
Administration expense 
Greater than estimated expense is largely due to additional expenses incurred 
for insurance, contract staff, advertising, promotion and consultants fees.  
 
Accommodation expense 
The Public Trustee has entered into a new property lease for six floors in 553 
Hay street building, which is a non-cancellable lease with a 10 year term. The 
rental expenses for this new premises have been overestimated due to a 
decline in market rental rates. 
 
 
 

Fees paid to Consolidated Account 
In addition to the stated annual agreement amount of $12,483,000 payable to 
the Consolidated account, the Public Trustee contributed $2.3 million 
additional fee revenue in line with self-funding commitment. 
 
Fees and charges 
Greater than expected fees is due to several factors including improved 
control over timely collection of fees and charges and partial clearing of 
outstanding jobs backlogs, especially in Wills and Accounts Examination 
areas. 
 
Public Trustee’s 6% fee from Common Account  
The Public Trustee was awarded an $872 million court trust in December 
2009. The award was fully invested in the Common Account, along with 
subsequent interest maturities. The Public Trustee’s 6% fee on the income 
earned in the 2012/13 financial year, contributed to a greater value than 
initially estimated.  
 
Receipts from Common Account Surplus Interest 
$3.1 million variance is largely due to property revaluation increase in 
Common Account investment. 
 
Interest Revenue 
Decline in interest earned on PT investment in the Common Account is due to 
reduced average value of reserves comparing with the estimate and lower 
earning rate.  
 
Recoups and other revenue from the Department of the Attorney 
General 
Several salary recoups from pervious years have been paid to the 
Consolidated account in 2013. These long-term outstanding recoups were not 
included in the original budget. 
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24. Estates and Trusts under administration 
The following statement of assets held and/or liabilities incurred in a trustee 
capacity is prepared in accordance with Treasurer’s Instruction 1103(15)(ii). It 
includes all assets realised and non-realised which are under the control and 
administration of the Public Trustee. 
 
Statement of Estates and Trusts being administered as at 30 June 2013: 
NET TRUST ASSETS UNDER ADMINISTRATION WERE: 
 
ESTATES AND TRUSTS 

 
Note

2013
$

2012
$

Deceased Estates  188,623,343 200,608,551
Direct Action  4,582,837 3,257,420
Entitled Trusts  301,652,620 281,167,557
Protected Management  360,322,314 311,481,342
Testamentary Trusts  62,601,388 62,946,884
Power of Attorney  32,236,350 25,525,726
Trusts  858,284,406 984,468,713
Safe-care   550,584 1,146,512
NET TRUST ASSETS  1,808,853,842 1,870,602,705
 
 
Investments in Common Account 25(h) 1,141,037,171 1,258,893,747
Investments in Strategic Common 
Accounts  26(a) 152,288,188 132,067,109

Bank deposits  104,519,765 77,387,740
Equities 24(a) 25,996,520 24,039,069
Unit Trusts 24(a) 8,425,957 5,951,251
Life Policies 24(b) 2,983,768 1,443,719
Real Estate 24(c) 372,167,530 372,183,107
Other Assets 24(d) 31,652,198 30,857,854
Total Investment and Loan Assets  1,839,071,097 1,902,823,596
TOTAL TRUST ASSETS  1,839,071,097 1,902,823,596
  
  
  

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

  
Note

2013
$

2012 
$ 

CURRENT LIABILITIES   
Payables  15,010,062 16,843,615 
Loans  587,120 1,483,450 
Mortgages – Deceased estates  2,781,985 2,776,670 
Total Current Liabilities  18,379,167 21,103,735 
   
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES   
Mortgages – Trust estates  11,838,088 11,117,156 
Total Non Current Liabilities  11,838,088 11,117,156 
    

TOTAL TRUST LIABILITIES  30,217,255 32,220,891 
   
NET TRUST ASSETS  1,808,853,842 1,870,602,705 
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Basis of valuation(s): 
24(a) Equities, unit trusts and Strategic Common Accounts 
For deceased estates the valuation is at the date of death. In other matters, 
the valuation for equities, unit trusts and Strategic Common Accounts is at 
30 June 2013 and sourced from market publications. 
 
24(b) Life policies 
Life policies have been valued on the basis of the surrender value supplied by 
relevant insurance companies. 
 
24(c) Real estate 
Deceased estate valuations are conducted by registered valuers, with values 
effective at the date of death. In other matters, real estate is shown at last 
valuation, cost or estimated value. Where estimates are made, appropriate 
Public Trustee personnel assess the value at time of inspection. It is not the 
policy of the Public Trustee to regularly value real estate since it is considered 
an unnecessary expense to impose on the client. 
 
24(d) Other assets 
Deceased estates valuation is at the date of death.  In other matters, valuation 
is either at the date the Public Trustee was appointed manager, administrator, 
new trustee or at the date of acquisition. Valuations are at cost or estimated 
disposal value. 
 
For items of minor value (eg. personal effects, furniture and other chattels) the 
beneficiaries’ estimates are usually accepted. For more valuable items such 
as jewellery and motor vehicles, valuations from a registered jeweller or use of 
the Red Book Guide, are adopted. 
 
25. Public Trustee Common Account 
The following are the financial statements of the Public Trustee Common 
Account. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

25(a) PUBLIC TRUSTEE COMMON ACCOUNT 
 STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  
 For the year ended 30 June 2013 
 
 Note 2013 2012 
  $ $ 
EXPENSES 
Investment expenses  1,839,183 2,987,202 
Interest paid to Estates and Trusts 25(e) 46,571,289 64,609,959 
Decrement from revaluation of 
investment properties   - 147,916 

Total expenses before payments to 
Public Trustee  48,410,472 67,745,077 

   
6% income fee paid to the Public 
Trustee  3,437,575 4,624,576 

Interest paid to the Public Trustee  1,424,955 1,790,486 
Surplus Common Account Interest paid 
to the Public Trustee  8,651,000 5,789,762 

Total expenses  61,924,002 79,949,901 
   
INCOME   
Income on Investments  59,132,092 80,063,462 
Increment from revaluation of investment 
properties  4,354,706 - 

Total income   63,486,798 80,063,462 
   
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 25(i)(ii) 1,562,796 113,561 
   
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 
INCOME/(LOSS)  - - 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE 
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR  1,562,796 113,561 

 
The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with 
the accompanying notes. 
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25(b) PUBLIC TRUSTEE COMMON ACCOUNT 
 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
 As at 30 June 2013 
 
 Note 2013 2012
  $ $
ASSETS    
Current Assets    
Cash at Bank  25(j)(i) 9,329,284 7,823,822
Cash Equivalents  25(j)(i) 1,123,586,107 1,231,228,953
Receivables 25(f) 72,598 5,638,246
Accrued Income  3,820,345 5,189,574
Property – Buildings held for sale 25(g) - 23,750,000
Total Current Assets  1,136,808,334 1,273,630,595
    

Non-Current Assets    
Property – Buildings  25(g) 57,000,000 46,754,658
Total Non-Current Assets  57,000,000 46,754,658
TOTAL ASSETS  1,193,808,334 1,320,385,253
    

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities  
Fees & Accrued Taxation  4,557 228,481
Payables  2,743 11,150
Public Trustee Funds 14(a) 29,633,697 27,727,658
Accrued Interest due to Estates and 
Trusts  3,618,322 15,575,169

Total Current Liabilities  33,259,319 43,542,458
    

Non-Current Liabilities 

Estates & Trusts under Administration  
25(h) 1,141,037,171 1,258,893,747

TOTAL LIABILITIES  1,174,296,490 1,302,436,205
    

NET ASSETS  19,511,844 17,949,048

 
 
 
 Note 2013 2012 
  $ $ 
EQUITY 
Common Account Investment reserve 25(i)(i) 14,782,380 14,782,380 
Retained earnings 25(i)(ii) 4,729,464 3,166,668 
TOTAL EQUITY  19,511,844 17,949,048 
 
The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanying notes. 
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25(c) PUBLIC TRUSTEE COMMON ACCOUNT  
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
For the year ended 30 June 2013 

 
 Note 2013 2012
  $ $
  
Balance of equity at start of year  17,949,048 17,835,489
    
RESERVES    
Common Account Investment reserve  
Balance at start of year   14,782,380 14,782,380
Transfers from reserves  - -
Transfers to reserves  - -
Balance at end of year 25(i)(i) 14,782,380 14,782,380
  
RETAINED EARNINGS    
Balance at start of year  3,166,668 3,053,109
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the 
year  1,562,796 113,561

Changes in reserves  - -
Balance at end of year 25(i)(ii) 4,729,464 3,166,668
  
Balance of equity at end of year  19,511,844 17,949,048 
 
 
The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanying notes. 
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$ $

25(d) PUBLIC TRUSTEE COMMON ACCOUNT  
 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
 For the year ended 30 June 2013 
 
 
 Note 2013 2012
  
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts 
Income on investments  60,608,606 79,362,421
 
Payments 
6% income fee paid to Public Trustee  (3,437,575) (4,624,576)
Interest paid to Estates and Trusts  (58,528,139) (64,332,755)
Interest paid to Public Trustee  (1,424,955) (1,790,486)
Investment expenses  (1,839,183) (2,987,202)
Net cash provided by operating 
activities 25(j)(ii) (4,621,246) 5,627,402

 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Payment for building purchase and 
improvements  (5,890,638) (10,852,572)

Proceeds from sales of investment property  29,200,000 -
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing 
activities  23,309,362 (10,852,572)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 Note 2013 2012 
  $ $ 
CASH FLOWS FROM ESTATES, TRUSTS & PUBLIC TRUSTEE 
Surplus Common Account Interest 
paid to Public Trustee  (8,651,000) (5,789,762) 

Movement in Public Trustee's liability  1,906,040 (3,827,510) 
Movement in Estates and Trusts  (118,080,540) 16,451,567 
Net cash provided by estates, 
trusts & Public Trustee   (124,825,500) 6,834,295 

 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash 
and cash equivalents   (106,137,384) 1,609,125 

 
Cash and cash equivalents at the 
beginning of period  1,239,052,775 1,237,443,650 

   
Cash and cash equivalents at the 
end of period 25(j)(i) 1,132,915,391 1,239,052,775 

 
The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanying notes. 
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25(e) Interest paid to estates and trusts 
Interest is distributed to Estates and Trusts on 1 April and 1 October each 
year in accordance with Section 39A(7) of the Public Trustee Act 1941. 
 2013 2012
 $ $

Interest paid to Estates and Trusts 46,571,289 64,609,959
 
25(f) Receivables  
 2013 2012
 $ $
Land under 553 Hay street - 5,450,000
Receivable for Common account properties  72,598 188,246
 72,598 5,638,246
 
 
25(g) Property 

2013 2012
 $ $
At fair value: 
Land and Building – Current Assets - 23,750,000
Land and Building – Non-Current Assets 57,000,000 46,754,658
  57,000,000 70,504,658
 
At 1 July 2012  the Public Trustee Common Account owned two investment 
properties, comprising of the freehold property at 565 Hay Street and the 
leasehold property at 553 Hay Street.  In March 2012 the PT fully vacated 565 
Hay Street in anticipation of its sale. This sale was finalised on 2 July 2012 for 
the agreed market value of $23,750,000 (ex GST). The PT Common Account 
entered into a simultaneous purchase agreement to purchase the land 
consisting of part Lot 23, being the land underneath the building at 553 Hay 
Street, resulting in freehold title for the building and land at 553 Hay Street.  A 
bank cheque for this purchase was raised prior to 30 June 2012 for 
$5,450,000 (ex GST) with the property transfer took place post on 2 July 
2012. 
 

At 30 June 2013 the Public Trustee manages the property at 553 Hay St for 
long-term rental yields. The property is recorded at fair value as determined 
by Landgate. 
 
Reconciliation of the carrying amount of property at the beginning and end of 
the current and previous financial year is: 
 
Property at 565 Hay Street 
 2013 2012 
 $ $ 
Carrying amount at beginning of year 23,750,000 23,750,000 
Additions and capital improvements - 147,915 
Revaluation (decrement)/increment - (147,915) 
Proceeds on sale (23,750,000) - 
Carrying amount at end of year - 23,750,000 
 
Property at 553 Hay Street 
 2013 2012 
 $ $ 
Carrying amount at beginning of year 46,754,658 41,500,000 
Additions and capital improvements 5,890,637 5,254,658 
Revaluation increment /(decrement)  4,354,705 - 

Carrying amount at end of year 57,000,000 46,754,658 

 
25(h) Estates and Trusts under Administration – Common Account 
The fair value of estate and trust assets at the end of the reporting period, 
held in the Public Trustee Common Account. 
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 2013 2012
 $ $
Activity 
Safe-care 75,034 479,153
Deceased Estates 54,797,655 48,450,597
Direct Action 3,688,130 2,247,597
Entitled Trusts 98,321,815 99,634,612
Protected Management 110,153,663 99,994,376
Testamentary Trusts 28,400,500 30,542,696
Power of Attorney 10,403,391 8,506,643
Trusts 835,196,983 969,038,072
Total estates & trusts under 
administration 1,141,037,171 1,258,893,747

 
25(i) Equity 
 
25(i)(i) Reserves 
Pursuant to section 6B of the Public Trustee Act 1941 and Regulation 6 of the 
Public Trustee Regulation 1942 of the regulations, the Current Agreement 
2012/13 prescribes the circumstances in which money may be transferred to 
or from a reserve fund.  The Agreement prescribes that funds held in the 
Common Account Investment Reserve may be applied to stabilise the 
Common Account interest paid to estates, meet losses on Common Account 
Investments, maintain Common Account Assets, and may be transferred to 
the Business Development Reserve. 
 
 2013 2012
 $ $
Common Account Investment Reserve   
Opening balance  14,782,380 14,782,380
Closing balance 14,782,380 14,782,380
 
 
 
 

25(i)(ii) Retained earnings 
 
 2013 2012 
 $ $ 
Opening balance 3,166,668 3,053,109 
Surplus/(Deficit) 1,562,796 113,561 
Closing balance 4,729,464 3,166,668 
 
25(j) Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows  
25(j)(i) Reconciliation of cash 
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent 
assets comprise cash on hand and short-term deposits that are readily 
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant 
risk of changes in value. Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the 
Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the Statement of 
Financial Position as follows: 
 
 2013 2012 
 $ $ 
Cash at bank 9,329,284 7,823,822 
Cash Equivalents  1,123,586,107 1,231,228,953 
Cash & Cash Equivalents 1,132,915,391 1,239,052,775 
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$ $

25(j)(ii) Reconciliation of (deficit) to net cash provided by operating 
activities. 
 2013 2012
 
Surplus/(Deficit) 1,562,796 113,561
Non-cash items: 
Payments to Public Trustee 8,651,000 5,789,762
(Increment)/Decrement from revaluation of 
investment (4,354,706) 147,916

Decrease /(Increase) in assets: 
Receivables  115,651 (173,683)
Accrued income 1,369,229 (334,227)
(Decrease)/Increase in liabilities: 
Payables (8,366) (193,131)
Accrued interest (11,956,850) 277,204
Net cash provided by operating activities (4,621,246) 5,627,402 
 
25(k) Financial instruments  
25(k)(i) Financial risk management objectives and policies 
Financial instruments held by the Common Account are cash and cash 
equivalents, loans, receivables and payables.  he Common Account has 
limited exposure to financial risks. The investments of the Common Account 
are in compliance with s39A Public Trustee Act 1941. 
 
The Common Account’s overall risk management program focuses on 
managing the risks identified below. 
 
Credit risk 
The State Government guarantees all financial assets of the Common 
Account and therefore no credit risk exists in respect of those amounts.  In 
addition, the buildings are covered by insurance and also professional 
indemnity insurance cover for staff involved with management of Common 
Account investments.  Receivables balances are monitored on an ongoing 
basis with the result that the Common Account’s exposure to bad debts is 
minimal.  There are no significant concentrations of credit risk.  There has 
been no change from the previous period in respect of exposure to credit risk. 
 

Liquidity risk 
The Public Trustee has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows of the 
Common Account by monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient 
funds are available to meet its commitments.  There has been no change from 
the previous period in respect of exposure to credit risk. 
 
Market risk 
The Common Account does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially 
exposed to other price risks. 
 
The Common Account’s investments are authorised by section 39A(3), 39D 
and 40A of the Public Trustee Act 1941 and exposure to interest rate risk is 
limited to cash and cash equivalents and mortgages. At the end of the 
reporting period there are no mortgages.  There has been no change from the 
previous period in respect of exposure to credit risk. 
 
25(k)(ii) Categories of financial instruments 
The carrying amount of each of the following categories of financial assets 
and financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows: 

2013
$

2012 
$ 

Financial Assets   
Cash at bank 9,329,284 7,823,822 
Cash Equivalents  1,123,586,107 1,231,228,953 
Debtors 72,598 188,246 
Accrued income 3,820,345 5,189,574 
  
Financial  Liabilities  
Payables 7,301 239,631 
Public Trustee Funds 29,633,697 27,727,658 
Accrued Interest due to Estates and Trusts 3,618,323 15,575,169 
Estates & Trusts under Administration 1,141,037,171 1,258,893,747 
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25(k)(iii) Financial instrument disclosures 
 
Credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk exposures 
The State Government guarantees all financial assets of the Common Account and therefore no credit risk exists in respect of those amounts.  The Common 
Account has no material exposure to liquidity risk. 
 
The Common Account’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below.  The table is 
based on information provided to senior management of the Public Trustee. 
 
The Common Account does not hold any financial assets that have had to have their terms renegotiated that would have otherwise resulted in them being past due 
or impaired. 
 
Ageing analysis of financial assets 

 Past due but not impaired  

 
Carrying 
amount 

Not past due 
and not 
impaired 

Up to 1 
month 1-3 months

3 months to 1 
year 1-5 years 

More than 5 
years 

Impaired 
financial 
assets 

 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 

2013  

Financial Assets  

Cash at Bank 9,329 9,329 - - - - - - 

Cash Equivalent 300,000 300,000 - - - - - - 

Cash Equivalent 823,586 823,586 - - - - - - 

Receivables 73 73 - - - - - - 

Accrued interest receivable 3,820 3,820 - - - - - - 

 1,136,808 1,136,808  

2012  

Financial Assets  

Cash at Bank 7,824 7,824 - - - - - - 

Cash Equivalent 265,000 265,000 - - - - - - 

Cash Equivalent 966,229 966,229 - - - - - - 

Receivables 188 188 - - - - - - 

Accrued interest receivable 5,189 5,189 - - - - - - 

 1,244,430 1,244,430  
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Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure  
The following table details the Public Trustee’s interest and contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities. The maturity analysis section 
includes interest and principal cash flows. The interest rate exposure section analyses only the carrying amounts of each item. 
 
Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets  
  Interest rate exposure  Maturity dates 
 Weighted 

average 
effective 

interest rate 

Carrying 
amount 

Fixed 
Interest 

rate 

Variable 
Interest 

Rate 

Non-
interest 
bearing 

Nominal 
amount 

Up to 1 
month 

1-3 months 3 months to 
1 year 

1-5 years More than 5 
years 

 % $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 

2013    

Financial Assets   

Cash at Bank 2.97% 9,329 - 9,329 - 9,329 9,329 - - - - 
Cash Equivalent 4.49% 300,000 - 300,000 - 300,000 105,000 115,000 80,000 - - 
Cash Equivalent 3.55% 823,586 - 823,586 - 823,586 - 823,586 - - - 
Receivables - 73 - - 73 73 73 - - - - 
Accrued interest 
receivable - 3,820 - - 3,820 3,820 1,457 2,233 130 - - 

  1,136,808 - 1,132,915 3,893 1,136,808 115,859 940,819 80,130 - - 
2012    

Financial Assets   

Cash at Bank 3.95% 7,824 - 7,824 - 7,824 7,824 - - - - 
Cash Equivalent 5.22% 265,000 - 265,000 - 265,000 70,000 140,000 55,000 - - 
Cash Equivalent 4.66% 966,229 - 966,229 - 966,229 - 966,229 - - - 
Receivables - 188 - - 188 188 188 - - - - 
Accrued interest 
receivable - 5,189 - - 5,189 5,189 1,801 3,327 61 - - 

  1,244,430 - 1,239,053 5,377 1,244,430 79,813 1,109,556 55,061 - - 
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The following table details the contractual maturity analysis for financial liabilities.  The contractual maturity amounts are representative of the undiscounted amounts 
at the end of the reporting period.  The table includes interest and principal cash flows.  
 
Maturity analysis is not provided due to nature of liabilities. Trust and estates liabilities comprises of deceased estates and trusts in various stages of administration 
and it is impractical to establish finalisation date for these cases. Public Trustee Funds liability represents value of the Public Trustee investment in the Common 
Account and there is no maturity date for this item. 
 
Interest rate exposure of financial liabilities 
 Interest Rate Exposure  
 Weighted 

average 
effective 

interest rate
Carrying 
amount

Fixed Interest 
Rate 

Variable 
Interest Rate

Non-Interest 
Bearing

Past due but 
not impaired

Impaired 
financial 

assets 
 

2013 % $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 
Financial Liabilities   
Payables 7 - - 7 - - 
Public Trustee Funds 5.55 29,634 - 29,634 - - - 
Accrued Interest Estates & Trusts 3,618 - - 3,618 - - 

Estates & Trusts: 
  Estates 
  Trusts & Other 
  Trusts & Other 
  Trusts & Other 
  Trusts & Other 

1.50
2.00
2.75
3.25
3.34
5.50

55,480
53,061

151,031
59,116

823,586
(1,237)

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

55,480
53,061

151,031
59,116

823,586
(1,237)

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

Total Financial Liabilities 1,174,296 - 1,170,671 3,625 - - 
2012   
Financial Liabilities    
Payables 240 - - 240 - - 
Public Trustee Funds 6.21 27,728 - 27,728 - - - 
Accrued Interest Estates & Trusts 15,575 - - 15,575 - - 

Estates & Trusts: 
  Estates 
  Trusts & Other 
  Trusts & Other 
  Trusts & Other 
  Trusts & Other 

3.00
3.50
4.50
5.00
4.38
5.50

48,456
49,014

151,745
55,051

955,205
(578)

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

48,456
49,014

151,745
55,051

955,205
(578)

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

Total Financial Liabilities 1,302,436 - 1,286,621 15,815 - - 
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis0 
The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the Common Account’s financial assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period on 
the surplus for the period and equity for a 1% (100 basis points) change in interest rates.  A 1% movement is considered to be reasonably possible taking into 
account past performance, economic forecasts and management’s knowledge and experience of financial markets.  It is assumed that the change in interest rates is 
held constant throughout the reporting period.   
  -100 Basis Points (-1%) +100 Basis Points (+1%) 
 Carrying amount Surplus Equity Surplus Equity 

 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 
2013   
Financial Assets   
Cash and cash equivalents  1,132,915 (11,329) (11,329) 11,329 11,329 
Accrued income  3,820 (38) (38) 38 38 
Financial Liabilities   
Accrued Interest Due to Estates and Trusts 3,618 36 36 (36) (36) 
Public Trustee Funds 29,634 296 296 (296) (296) 
Total increase/(decrease)  (11,035) (11,035) 11,035 11,035 
   
2012   
Financial Assets   
Cash and cash equivalents  1,239,052 (12,390) (12,390) 12,390 12,390 
Accrued income  5,190 (51) (51) 51 51 
Financial Liabilities   
Accrued Interest Due to Estates and Trusts 15,575 155 155 (155) (155) 
Public Trustee Funds 27,727 277 277 (277) (277) 
Total increase/(decrease)  (12,009) (12,009) 12,009 12,009 
 
Fair value 
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at amounts that 
represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.  
 
25(l) Explanatory statement 
 
Significant variances between current and prior year actual 
Details and reasons for significant variations between actual revenue and expenditure and the corresponding item of the preceding year are detailed below. 
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Significant variations are considered to be those greater than 10% and 
$100,000. 
 2013 2012 Variance Variance
 $ $ $ %
Expenses  
Investment expenses 1,839,183 2,987,202 (1,148,019) (38%)
Interest paid to Estates and 
Trusts 46,571,289 64,609,959 (18,038,670) (28%)

Decrement from revaluation 
of investment properties  - 147,916 (147,916) (100%)

6% income fee paid to the 
Public Trustee 3,437,575 4,624,576 (1,187,001) (26%)

Interest paid to the Public 
Trustee 1,424,955 1,790,486 (365,531) (20%)

Surplus Common Account 
Interest paid to the Public 
Trustee 

8,651,000 5,789,762 2,861,238 49%

Income  
Income on Investments 59,132,092 80,063,462 (20,931,370) (26%)
Increment from revaluation 
of investment properties 4,354,706 - 4,354,706 100%

 
Investment Expenses 
Investment expenses consist of investment property expenses. The reduction 
is due to the fact that one of the investment properties has been sold in early 
2012-2013.  
 
Interest paid to Estates and Trusts 
Majority of Common Account income is earned from interest on short-term 
deposits. As interest rates reduced in 2012-2013, so did the share of income 
distributed to estates and trusts.  
Decrement from Revaluation on Common Account Investments 
There has been significant increase in value of the investment property. No 
decrement on revaluation have been recorded in 2013.  
 
6% income fee paid to the Public Trustee 
Due to decline in interest rates, the Common Account earnings reduced by 
26%. Consequently the Public Trustee commission on the Common Account 
income also reduced as a result. 

Interest paid to the Public Trustee 
Majority of Common Account income is earned from interest on short-term 
deposits. As interest rates reduced in 2012-2013, so did the share of income 
distributed to the Public Trustee. 
 
Surplus Common Account Interest paid to the Public Trustee 
$2.8 million increase from last year is largely due to a revaluation increase in 
Common Account investment property.  
 
Income on Investments 
The decrement is due to decline of interest rates during 2012-2013. 
 
Increment from revaluation of investment properties 
There has been significant increase in value of the investment property. 
 
26. Public Trustee Strategic Common Accounts 
The following are the financial statements of the Public Trustee Strategic 
Common Accounts.  Established pursuant to section 39B of the Public 
Trustee Act 1941. Because the Trust’s redemption unit price is based on 
different valuation principles to that applied in financial reporting, a valuation 
difference exists. 
 
26(a) Estates and Trusts under administration 
 Strategic Common Accounts 
The fair value of estate and trust assets at the end of the reporting period held 
in the Public Trustee Strategic Common Accounts. 
 2013 2012 
 $ $ 
Activity  

Deceased Estates 0 3,490,857 
Entitled Trusts 133,063,179 111,391,775 
Protected Management 13,836,686 12,242,098 
Power of Attorney 3,282,528 2,771,839 
Trusts 1,630,245 1,503,182 
Safe-care  475,550 667,358 
Total estates & trusts under 
administration 152,288,188 132,067,109 
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26(b) PUBLIC TRUSTEE STRATEGIC COMMON ACCOUNTS 
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

       For the year ended 30 June 2013 
2013 Cash Conser-

vative Growth Growth 
Plus Total 

   $’000   $’000 $’000   $’000   $’000
Net Assets at the 
beginning of the reporting 
period 

- 17,496 108,258 1,986 127,740

  

Applications - 10,415 5,095 - 15,510
Redemptions - (1,267) (7,145) - (8,412)
  26,644 106,208 1,986 134,838
Expenses  
Trustee’s fees - 104 599 12 715
Custody fees - 33 181 5 219
Total expenses - 137 780 17 934
  

Investment Income  
Interest income - - 1 - 1
Trust distributions - 719 3,259 56 4,034
Net gains/(losses) on 
financial instruments held at 
fair value through profit or 
loss 

- 549 13,615 407 14,571

Other income - 77 393 9 479
Total net investment 
income/(loss) - 1,345 17,268 472 19,085
  

Profit/(loss) before 
finance costs attributable 
to unit holders 

- 1,208 16,488 455 18,151

  

Financing costs 
attributable to unit 
holders 

 

Distributions to unit holders - 724 3,603 48 4,375
Increase/(decrease) in net 
assets attributable to unit 
holders 

- 484 12,885 407 13,776

Net Assets at the end of 
the reporting period - 27,128 119,093 2,393 148,614

 

PUBLIC TRUSTEE STRATEGIC COMMON ACCOUNTS 
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
For the year ended 30 June 2012 

2012 Cash Conser-
vative Growth Growth 

Plus Total 
   $’000   $’000 $’000   $’000   $’000 
Net Assets at the 
beginning of the reporting 
period 

- 18,229 114,028 2,141 134,398 

   

Applications - 150 900 - 1,050 
Redemptions - (805) (2,362) - (3,167) 
 17,574 112,566 2,141 132,281 
Expenses   
Trustee’s fees - 94 573 10 677 
Custody fees - 30 173 5 208 
Total expenses - 124 746 15 885 
   

Investment Income   
Interest income - - 2 - 2 
Trust distributions - 948 4,365 60 5,373 
Net gains/(losses) on 
financial instruments held at 
fair value through profit or 
loss 

- (28) (4,276) (155) (4,459) 

Other income - 72 380 8 460 
Total net investment 
income/(loss) - 992 471 (87) 1,376 
   

Profit/(loss) before 
finance costs attributable 
to unit holders 

- 868 (275) (102) 491 

   

Financing costs 
attributable to unit 
holders 

  

Distributions to unit holders - 946 4,033 53 5,032 
Increase/(decrease) in net 
assets attributable to unit 
holders 

- (78) (4,308) (155) (4,541) 

Net Assets at the end of 
the reporting period - 17,496 108,258 1,986 127,740 
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26(c) PUBLIC TRUSTEE STRATEGIC COMMON ACCOUNTS 

STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS 
 As at 30 June 2013 
 

2013 Cash Conser-
vative Growth Growth 

Plus Total 

 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 
Assets     
Cash and Cash 
equivalents - - - 1 1

Receivables - 617 2,616 38 3,271
Financial assets held at 
fair value through profit or 
loss 

- 27,122 119,617 2,388 149,127

Total assets - 27,739 122,233 2,427 152,399
  
Liabilities  
Distributions payable - 576 2,862 34 3,472
Payables - 35 277 1 313
Total liabilities 
(excluding net assets 
attributable to unit 
holders) 

- 611 3,139 35 3,785

  
Net assets attributable 
to unit holders - liability - 27,128 119,093 2,392 148,614

      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      

      
      
      

      

2012 Cash Conser-
vative Growth Growth 

Plus Total 

 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 
Assets      
Cash and Cash 
equivalents - - - - - 

Receivables - 829 3,612 46 4,487 
Financial assets held at 
fair value through profit or 
loss 

- 17,529 108,180 1,983 127,692 

Total assets - 18,358 111,792 2,029 132,179 
  
Liabilities  
Distributions payable - 841 3,442 42 4,325 
Payables - 21 92 1 114 
Total liabilities 
(excluding net assets 
attributable to unit 
holders) 

- 862 3,534 43 4,439 

  
Net assets attributable 
to unit holders - liability - 17,496 108,258 1,986 127,740 
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Estimates 2014 - Statement of 
Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 
 
 

 
ESTIMATES 

2014
$000

ACTUAL 
2013
$000

COST OF SERVICES 
EXPENSES 
Write offs 300 276
Employee benefits expense 14,247 13,851
Depreciation Expense 1,403 1,463
Administration expenses 2,169 3,472
Accommodation expenses 2,640 2,446
Corporate service expenses 2,607 2,367
Loss on disposal of non-current assets - 1
Total expenses before payments to 
Consolidated Account 23,366 23,876

 
Fees paid to Consolidated Account 14,808 14,842
Surplus Common Account Interest paid to 
Consolidated Account 5,206 5,651

Other payments to Consolidated Account from 
reserves 2,615 2,720

Total cost of services 45,995 47,089
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

 
ESTIMATES 

2014 
$000 

ACTUAL 
2013 
$000 

   
INCOME   
Fees raised from Estates and Trusts 13,308 11,770 
Public Trustee 6% fee from Common Account 978 3,437 
Management Fee from Strategic Common Account 675 639 
Receipts from Common Account Surplus Interest 6,671 8,651 
Interest revenue 1,270 1,425 
Other Revenue 25 36 
Total Income other than income from State 
Government 22,927 25,958 

   
Net Cost of Service before Income from State 
Government 23,068 21,131 

   
INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT   
Recoups and other revenue from the Department of 
the Attorney General 437 444 

Resources received free of charge from the 
Department of the Attorney General 22,629 23,146 

Total income from State Government 23,066 23,590 
   
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD (2) 2,459 
   
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - - 
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE 
PERIOD (2) 2,459 
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Estimates 2014 - Statement of Financial 
Position 
As at 30 June 2014 
 

ESTIMATES
2014

ACTUAL
2013

 $000 $000
ASSETS 
Current Assets 
Cash – Investment in Common Account 26,029 29,634
Receivables - 143
Total Current Assets 26,029 29,777
 
TOTAL ASSETS 26,029 29,777
  

LIABILITIES  

Current Liabilities  

Accrued Fees Payable to Consolidated Account - 585
Payables 200 431
Total Current Liabilities 200 1016
  
TOTAL LIABILITIES 200 1016
 
NET ASSETS 25,829 28,760
  

EQUITY  

Indemnity reserve 6,300 6,331
Business Development reserve 11,545 16,819
Retained Earnings 7,984 5,610
TOTAL EQUITY 25,829 28,760

 



 Key Performance Indicator Information 

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR INFORMATION 

Certification of Performance Indicators 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013 
 
 
I hereby certify that the performance indicators are based on proper 
records, are relevant and appropriate for assisting users to assess the 
Public Trustee's performance, and fairly represent the performance of 
the Public Trustee for the financial year ended 30 June 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Brian Roche BBus MMgt 
Accountable Authority 
12 September 2013 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
DEPARTMENT OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL DESIRED 
OUTCOME: The right to justice and safety for all people in Western 
Australia is preserved and enhanced. 

SERVICE: Trustee Services 

BUSINESS AREA OUTPUT: The Public Trustee provides a funds 
management and investment service and acts as trustee or financial 
administrator pursuant to the orders of courts or tribunals.  It also 
administers the estates of people who die with or without a will, in 
accordance with the terms of the will or the relevant law and under the 
authority of the Supreme Court. The Public Trustee offers high quality, 
personalised trustee services to meet the needs of all sectors of the 
Western Australian community.   

PUBLIC TRUSTEE ROLE: Enhance the lives of Western Australians 
by providing high quality and accessible trustee and asset 
management services. 

Equitable access to trustee services for all Western Australians is a 
crucial element in preserving and enhancing their right to justice and 
safety. Providing trustee services is the responsibility of the Public 
Trustee. The Public Trustee is a Statutory Authority within the 
provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006. The Public Trustee 
offers high quality, personalised trustee services to meet the needs of 
all sectors of the Western Australian community.  Key performance 
indicators have been selected to measure the Office’s effectiveness 
and efficiency in fulfilling the duties of the Public Trustee Act 1941. 

Trustee Services Include: 
 Administering estates of people who die with or without a will 

(estate administration); 
 Managing the financial affairs of people who are unable or 

unwilling to manage their financial affairs (trust management); 
 Preparing wills and powers of attorney; and 
 Examining the accounts of administration orders. 

These services are available to all Western Australians irrespective of 
profitability or complexity.
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Effectiveness Indicators 
1.1 Extent to which trustee services meet the needs of clients 
This indicator measures client satisfaction with the quality of trustee 
services provided. In 2013 Catalyse Research and Strategy 
consultants were engaged to conduct a telephone survey, clients to be 
surveyed were identified through the Public Trustee’s Client Database. 
The sample frame was defined as clients who: 

 were aged over 18 and able to make meaningful comments; 
 had an active account during the 2012 calendar year; and 
 had telephone and mail contact details available. 

Based on the above definition, a random sample of clients was 
generated and selected, representing a cross-section of clients who 
use trustee services. A sample of 458 responses, with 78% 
participation rate, represented the total population of approximately 
13,000 clients serviced during the year. The survey was done with 
sampling precision +/- 4.6% at the 95% confidence interval. 

There have been no changes in the target since previous year. 

 2009 2010 2011 2012 Target 
Extent to which 
trust management 
services meet the 
needs of clients 

88% 84% 85% 75% 80% 

 

The fall in general satisfaction resulted from clients expecting greater 
accessibility and more regular updates. The growing time taken for 
states to be administered and dissatisfaction with the falling value of 
general trusts also impacted results. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1.2 The percentage of Western Australian deceased estates 
administered by the Public Trustee 
The Public Trustee offers a secure value for money alternative for 
administration of deceased estates in Western Australia. This ensures 
that trustee services are accessible to people in the state. The 
percentage of deceased estates administered by the Public Trustee 
indicates the use being made of the service and therefore the overall 
accessibility of trustee services to Western Australians. 

The indicator represents the number of deceased estate files reported 
as a percentage of the number of adult deaths in Western Australia. 

The Public Trustee aimed to reach a target of 8.5%. There have been 
no changes in the target since the previous year. 

 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 Target 

Percentage of 
Western 
Australian 
deceased estates 
administered by 
the Public Trustee 

7.5% 6.9% 5.4% 5.7% 8.5% 

Number of adult 
deaths in WA 12,572 12,397 12,837 13,230 NA 

Number of new 
deceased estates 
administered 

941 853 691 755 NA 

 

The lower than target result is largely due to the decline in the number 
of deceased estates administered due to the fact that the Public 
Trustee increased the threshold to $20,000 to allow beneficiaries to 
informally administer the estates themselves. 
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1.3 Extent to which the Public Trustee maintains a market share in 
drawing Wills naming the Public Trustee as executor 
This indicator measures the Public Trustee performance in the market 
in order to monitor its success in providing a will preparation service for 
all Western Australians. 

This indicator represents the number of people who died during the 
year who had a will prepared naming the Public Trustee as executor. It 
is shown as a percentage of the total number of adult deaths in 
Western Australia. 

In 2013, the Public Trustee administered 1,490 estates that named the 
Public Trustee as executor. The Public Trustee’s market share for this 
period was 11%. 

There have been no changes in the target since previous year. 

 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 Target 
Extent to which 
Public Trustee 
maintains a 
market share in 
drawing wills 
naming the Public 
Trustee as 
executor 

11% 12% 12% 11% 12%

Number of adult 
deaths in WA 12,572 12,397 12,837 13,230 NA

Number of estates 
in which the Public 
Trustee had 
prepared a Will. 

1,334 1,479 1,537 1,490 NA

 

There are no significant variations with the target and prior year 
results. 

 
 
 

 
1.4 Percentage of estates finalised within 12 months 
This indicator provides a measure of success from a client's 
perspective, of the average time taken to administer an estate. This 
indicator was agreed to by the Trustee Corporations Association of 
Australia as a base indicator of efficiency. 

It would be impractical to include all estates closed during the 12 
month period as some of the estates may have been under 
administration for as long as 50 years, as in case of a life interest. 
Issues such as life interests, taxation, family disputes and testator 
family maintenance actions contribute to the time taken to close an 
estate, which are outside the control of the Public Trustee. 

The average time taken to complete an estate, if completed within 
twelve months, was 6.7 months, based on the date of final completion. 

There have been no changes in the target since previous year. 

 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 Target 

Percent of estates 
finalised within 12 
months of being 
reported 

 

Within 12 months 60% 59% 60% 59% 67% 
Within 9 months 45% 44% 45% 44% 55% 
Within 6 months 29% 27% 26% 26% 36% 
 

2012/13 achievements are consistent with results of four prior years. 
The difference with the target indicates increased complexity and 
compliance issues in administration of deceased estates since the 
target was last achieved in 2007. 
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1.5 The percentage of clients who have services provided by the 
Public Trustee under operating subsidy rebate (OS) 
In addition to providing affordable services thereby making trustee 
services more accessible, the Public Trustee provides services free of 
charge, or at a reduced cost, to clients who cannot afford them. This 
further increases the accessibility of trustee services by ensuring that 
all Western Australians have access to trustee services. 

The proportion of services provided free of charge or at a reduced cost 
under the Public Trustee’s community service obligation program is a 
measure of the extent to which the Public Trustee supports the 
accessibility of trustee services. 

There have been no changes in the target since previous year. 

 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 Target 
The percentage of 
clients who have 
services provided 
by the Public 
Trustee under an 
OS 

47.4% 43.3% 42.8% 45.8% 35%

Number of OS files 
managed 2,462 2,284 2,308 2,603 1,855

 

The higher than target result is due to an increase in number of clients 
being referred to the Public Trustee from the State Administrative 
Tribunal. The majority of these referrals fall into the Community 
Service Obligation category hence increasing the client base in this 
group. 

 
 
 
 
 

Efficiency Indicators 
1.6 Cost per trust managed 
This indicator measures the average cost of managing a trust. It is 
calculated by dividing the full cost of providing trust management 
services by the number of trusts under management. 

The target for this indicator has been changed from prior year due to 
changes in expenditure budget and CPI increase. 

 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 Target 
Cost per trust 
managed $1,707 $1,788 $2,008 $1,998 $2,143 

Number of trusts 
managed 5,190 5,279 5,395 5,682 5,300 

 

The 7% reduction in cost per trust in comparison with the 2012/13 
target is consistent with the 7% increase in number of trust files 
processed during the year comparing with the budged figure. 
 
1.7 Cost per deceased estate administered 
This indicator measures the average cost per deceased estate 
administered. It is calculated by dividing the full cost of the deceased 
estate service by the number of estates for the year. 

The target for this indicator has been changed from prior year due to 
changes in expenditure budget and CPI increase. 

 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 Target 
Cost per 
deceased estate 
administered  

$2,168 $2,458 $2,920 $2,810 $2,756 

Number of 
deceased estates 
administered 

3,198 2,985 2,947 3,140 3,200 

 

There are no significant variations with the target and prior year 
results. 
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1.8 Cost per Will prepared 
This indicator measures the average cost per Will prepared and 
signed. It is calculated by dividing the full cost of the Wills service by 
the number of Wills prepared for the year. 

 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 Target 
Cost per Will 
prepared $426 $505 $715 $780 $520

Number of Wills 
prepared 3,481 3,337 2,862 2,916 3,900

 

The higher than target result is due to a lower number of wills prepared 
as a result of a temporary re-assignment of legal staff to clear a 
backlog of urgent client legal matters. 

The result in 2009/10 is not comparable due to the implementation of a 
new report script from the Client management system in 2011/12 and 
2012/13, which has led to a more accurate outcome. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Common Account Indicators 
Effectiveness Indicators 
Of critical importance to potential customers is the rate of interest paid 
on their funds. Public Trustee clients expect a reasonable return on 
their funds, the effectiveness of the Public Trustee in achieving these 
objectives can be measured by a comparison of Public Trustee rates 
with those offered by other investment institutions. 

1.9(a) Common Account Earning Rate 
The returns paid by the Public Trustee’s Common Account to clients 
after deducting expenses, and those paid by comparable “at call” 
investment institutions are as follows: 

As at 
30 

June 

Public 
Trustee 

Deceased 
Estates11 

% 

Public Trustee 
Investment 

Agencies12 % 

Public Trustee 
Investment 
Agencies13 

% 

Bank 
Cash 

Manage
ment 

Accounts 
($10,000)

14 
% 

2010 3.00 3.50, 5.00, 5.50 & 5.29 3.50, 5.00 & 5.00 3.45 
2011 3.00 3.50, 5.00, 5.50 & 5.27 3.50, 5.00 & 5.00 3.70 
2012 3.00 3.50, 4.50, 5.00 & 4.38 3.50, 4.50 & 5.00 2.20 
2013 1.50 2.00, 2.75, 3.25 & 3.34 2.00, 2.75 & 3.25 1.65 

 

All funds invested in the Public Trustee’s Common Account are “at 
call”. 

Client earning rates from the Common Account are based on market 
interest rates and Reserve Bank of Australia (RBA) rates. The 
reduction in 2013 is due to overall decline in interest rates on the 
money market and RBA rates. 

                                                 
11 Rates effective as at 30 June  
12 Rates effective as at 30 June 
13 Rates effective as at 30 June 
14 As published on the Reserve Bank of Australia Website 
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1.9(b) Public Trustee’s Common Account Performance vs WA 
State Treasury and CMT Benchmark Earning Rates (net basis) 
In order to generate sufficient income to enable an attractive rate of 
interest to be paid to clients, all monies deposited to the Common 
Account are invested in the open market. The principal aim of the 
service is to achieve an attractive earning rate that maximises the 
investment potential of the fund within acceptable prudential levels. 

A comparison of the performance with WA State Treasury’s earning 
rate on the Public Bank Account and the earning rate of three leading 
cash management trusts (CMT) is as follows: 
 2010

%
2011

%
2012

%
2013

%
Treasury Earning Rate 4.18 5.03 3.95 3.55
CMT Benchmark Rate 3.76 4.66 3.89 3.40

Public Trustee Common Account 5.90 6.47 6.21 5.55

 

In the twelve months to 30 June 2013, the Public Trustee Common 
Account (excluding the funds of a significant court award) achieved a 
net return of 5.55% (6.21% in 2012) on the investment of the funds 
comprising the Common Account. Average funds under management 
for the year to 30 June totalled $360 million ($362 million in 2012) with 
an additional average of $890 million ($957 million in 2012) held in 
trusts for a specific court award. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Efficiency Indicators 
1.9(c) Common Account Investment Cost per Dollar Invested 
The Public Trustee is responsible for the management and investment 
of the funds that comprise the Common Account, as well as funds 
invested in the financial market. At 30 June 2013 the total average 
value of the Common Account for the year was $1.250 billion ($1.319 
billion in 2012), with a further $152 million ($132 million in 2012) 
invested in the financial market in the Strategic Common Accounts and 
$34 million ($30 million in 2012) in managed funds on behalf of 
individual clients. 
The cost of managing these funds in 2013 was $490,19715 or 0.03% of 
the mean value of the total funds under management. Comparatives to 
previous financial years are as follows: 
 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 
Cost of managing funds $454,832 $362,721 $462,968 $490,197 
Percentage of funds under 
management 

0.04% 0.03% 0.03% 0.03% 

 

                                                 
15 Costs include expenses incurred by all officers involved in the management of the 
fund including on-costs such as rent and electricity as well as superannuation and 
payroll tax. On-costs are charged at 66% of direct salary. 
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